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For the year ended 31 March 2003

General

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the development,
management and provision of essential and recreational
services for residential housing and leisure projects in
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island, other property development,
property investment, hotel operation, manufacturing, other
investments and provision of health care services.

The Group’s associates and jointly controlled entities are
principally engaged in property development, property
investment, construction and provision of health care
services.

Adoption of New and Revised Statements of Standard
Accounting Practice

In the current year, the Group has adopted, for the first time,
a number of new and revised Statements of Standard
Accounting Practice (“SSAPs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants which has resulted in the adoption
of the following new and revised accounting policies. The
adoption of these SSAPs has resulted in a change in the
format of presentation of the cash flow statement and the
inclusion of a statement of changes in equity in lieu of the
statement of recognised gains and losses, but has had no
significant effect on the results for the current or prior
accounting periods. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment
has been required.

Foreign currencies

The revisions to SSAP 11 “Foreign Currencies Translation”
have eliminated the choice of translating the income
statements of overseas operations at the closing rate for
the year, the policy previously followed by the Group. They
are now required to be translated at an average rate. This
change in accounting policy has not had any significant effect
on the results for the current or prior accounting periods.

64

AEABERBREEAR QA | 2002/2003 F #H



B %5 8RR MY A

Notes to the Financial Statements

#

F_EE=F-A=+—HIFE

RO REBIT S ERER
=

REREBR

FA - AEEERMNSAERENS
155% (REFT) [RERE8R] - BIFZ
EH BeREAINEE KREM
ME-BEBEZT MEAEZR
B MBI 25 2F B R EHRE
BREE REIMERSRE BT
BRME) o WARERIBPMEL 2R
TRERBREERE - BRIEAI D5
BERARRERBELD - 1tIh - B
MReFEERZzzBEEEBHR T
BRERMEEARMEZERER -HEe Kk
ReSEERAZENEREHGRAR
TRERELBTREFRI Z LB

<]

\_H

EBEEF

FR - ARECRANSHERERS
4R [MEBEA] - ZERSIATEER
B (BREKENE) 25t 8%
A - AR AEER 2 EEBHFORIK
BRI S RS EBERFE345
HYBHRTEEMNERTE -

TEEHEE

AN B 75 i 3} T AR 98 FE SRk N 1B )
2o WOHRBEHREYE  BEEME
REFREFHAE -

A BHRERIIBRBEEB AR EFTR
AlfRE - KM Z T EGFTBEMT ¢

REEE
REVBBRREBBEARARENBA
AATHRBERIAEED#HESF=
A=1t—HAlz8BHRE -

For the year ended 31 March 2003

Adoption of New and Revised Statements of Standard
Accounting Practice - continued

Cash flow statements

In the current year, the Group has adopted SSAP 15 (Revised)
“Cash Flow Statements”. Under SSAP 15 (Revised), cash
flows are classified under three headings — operating,
investing and financing, rather than the previous five
headings. Interest and dividends, which were previously
presented under a separate heading, are classified as
operating, investing or financing cash flows, where applicable.
Cash flows arising from taxes on income are classified as
operating activities, unless they can be separately identified
with investing or financing activities. In addition, the amounts
presented for cash and cash equivalents have been amended
to exclude short-term loans that are financing in nature. The
re-definition of cash and cash equivalents has resulted in a
restatement in the comparative amounts shown in the
consolidated cash flow statement.

Employee benefits

In the current year, the Group has adopted SSAP 34
“Employee Benefits”, which introduces measurement rules
for employee benefits, including retirement benefit plans.
Because the Group participates only in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes, the adoption of SSAP 34 has
not had any material impact on the financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified for the revaluation
of investment properties, hotel properties and investments
in securities.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
The principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) made
up to 31 March each year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Basis of consolidation — continued

The results of subsidiaries acquired and disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income statement
from and up to their effective dates of acquisition and
disposal respectively.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances within
the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
balance sheet at cost less any impairment loss.

Interests in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The carrying amount of
such investments is reduced to recognise any identified
impairment loss in the value of individual investments.

Joint ventures

Where a group company undertakes its activities under joint
venture arrangements directly, constituted as jointly
controlled assets, the Group’s share of jointly controlled
assets and any liabilities incurred jointly with other venturers
are recognised in the financial statements and classified
according to their nature. Liabilities and expenses incurred
directly in respect of interests in jointly controlled assets
are accounted for on an accrual basis.

Income from the sale or use of the Group’s share of the
output of jointly controlled assets, together with its share of
joint venture expenses, are recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the transaction
will flow to/from the Group.

Joint venture arrangements which involve the establishment
of a separate entity in which each venturer has an interest
are referred to as jointly controlled entities. The Group reports
its interests in jointly controlled entities using the equity
method of accounting. The carrying amount of such interests
is reduced to recognise any identified impairment loss in
the value of individual investments.
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on consolidation represents the excess of
the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary,
associate or jointly controlled entity at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill is recognised as an asset and amortised on a
straight-line basis over its useful economic life of not more
than twenty years.

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate or a jointly
controlled entity is included within the carrying amount of
the associate or jointly controlled entity. Goodwill arising on
the acquisition of subsidiaries is presented separately in
the balance sheet.

On disposal of a subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled
entity, the attributable amount of unamortised goodwill is
included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill represents the excess of the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of a subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity
at the date of acquisition over the cost of acquisition.

Negative goodwill is presented as a deduction from assets
and is released to income based on an analysis of the
circumstances from which the balance resulted.

To the extent that the negative goodwill is attributable to
losses or expenses anticipated at the date of acquisition, it
is released to income in the period in which those losses or
expenses arise. The remaining negative goodwill is
recognised as income on a straight-line basis over the
remaining average useful life of the identifiable acquired
depreciable assets. To the extent that such negative goodwill
exceeds the aggregate fair value of the acquired identifiable
non-monetary assets, it is recognised as income immediately.
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Negative goodwill — continued

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate
or a jointly controlled entity is deducted from the carrying
value of that associate or jointly controlled entity. Negative
goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is
presented separately in the balance sheet as a deduction
from assets.

Revenue recognition

Income from properties developed for sale, which have not
been pre-sold prior to completion of development, is
recognised on the execution of legally binding, unconditional
and irrevocable sales contracts. Income from properties
developed for sale which have been pre-sold prior to
completion of development is recognised over the period
from the execution of a legally binding sales contract to the
completion of development as a proportion of the total
estimated profit of the development on the basis of
development costs incurred to date as a proportion of
estimated total development costs.

Income from outright sales of an entire development project
and/or development rights prior to completion and sales of
completed properties are recognised on the execution of
legally binding, unconditional and irrevocable contracts.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered
and title has passed.

Service income is recognised as services are rendered.
Rental income, including rentals invoiced in advance from
property letting under operating leases, is recognised on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Dividend income is recognised when the Group’s/Company’s
right to receive payments has been established.
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Revenue recognition — continued

Interest income from bank deposits is accrued on a time
basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
interest rate applicable. Other interest income is recognised
in the income statement as above, on an accrual basis,
except in the case of receivables which are considered to
be doubtful at which stage interest accrual ceases.

Sales of investments are recognised on the execution of
legally binding, unconditional and irrevocable contracts.

Revenue on construction contracts is recognised using the
percentage of completion method by reference to the value
of work carried out during the year.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than hotel properties
and construction in progress, is stated at cost less
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

The profit or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an
asset is determined as the difference between the sale
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the income statement.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than hotel properties
and construction in progress, using the straight line method,
over their estimated useful lives which are as follows:

Freehold land
Leasehold land

No depreciation
Over the unexpired term
of the relevant lease

Leasehold buildings, commercial 5-40 years
and leisure facilities

Leasehold improvements 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-5 years

Plant, machinery and equipment 5 years

Ferries, launches and motor vehicles 5-20 years
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Property, plant and equipment - continued

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets
or, where shorter, the term of the related lease.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any identified
impairment loss. Construction in progress is not depreciated
until completion of construction. On completion of
construction, the assets are transferred to appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment.

Impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of
an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Investment properties

Investment properties are completed properties which are
held for their investment potential, any rental income derived
therefrom being negotiated at arm’s length.

Investment properties are stated at their open market value
based on an annual professional valuation at the balance
sheet date. Any surplus or deficit arising on the revaluation
of investment properties is credited or charged to the
investment property revaluation reserve unless the balance
of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, in which
case the excess of the deficit over the balance on the
investment property revaluation reserve is charged to the
income statement.

On disposal of investment properties, the balance on the
investment property revaluation reserve attributable to the
property disposed of is transferred to the income statement.

No depreciation is provided in respect of investment
properties which are held under leases with unexpired terms
of more than twenty years.

Hotel properties

Hotel properties are interests in land and buildings and their
integral fixed plant which are collectively used in the hotel
operations, and are stated at an annual professional
valuation at the balance sheet date. Any surplus arising on
revaluation of hotel properties is credited to the asset
revaluation reserve. A decrease in net carrying amount
arising on revaluation of a hotel property is charged to the
income statement to the extent that it exceeds the surplus,
if any, held in the asset revaluation reserve relating to a
previous revaluation of that particular property. On the
subsequent sale of hotel properties, the attributable
revaluation surplus is transferred to accumulated profits.
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

Significant Accounting Policies — continued

Hotel properties — continued

No depreciation is provided on hotel properties held on
leases of more than twenty years. It is the Group’s practice
to maintain the properties in a continual state of sound
repairs and to make improvements from time to time and
accordingly the directors consider that provision for
depreciation is not necessary as the properties maintain
residual values at least equal to their carrying values.
Expenditure on repairs and maintenance is charged to the
income statement when incurred. Hotel properties held on
leases with an unexpired term of twenty years or less are
depreciated, using the straight line method, over the
unexpired term of the leases.

Properties held for/under development

Properties held for/under development, which have not been
identified for any specific purpose, are shown as non-current
assets and are stated at cost or their carrying values
immediately before reclassification from properties held for
other purposes less any impairment losses recognised.

Properties under development for sale are classified under
current assets and are stated at development costs incurred
to date plus estimated attributable profit for properties which
have been pre-sold less foreseeable losses and amounts
received and receivable under sales contracts. Attributable
profit is recognised only when it is reasonably certain and is
estimated as a proportion of the total estimated profit of
the development by reference to the development costs
incurred to date as a proportion of estimated total
development costs.

Costs relating to the development of the properties, including
financial costs, are capitalised and included as properties
held for/under development until such time they are
identified for transfer to specific categories of property, plant
and equipment, investment properties or properties for sale.

72

AEABERBREEAR QA | 2002/2003 F #H



B %5 8RR MY A

Notes to the Financial Statements

#

F_EE=F-A=+—HIFE

TEERBE-&
HEERME
FERRMETIERBEE » WK
BR R Rl B3R FEME 2 WIKE T

BERE
BHEATRTSAEERER - N5
R A -

BREEIHMAZEBERIN  EE
FURGEE AR ZBARBERAFER

= o
o

D]]

FHER P 2B 2 REBR WS &ﬁﬁ
A BRI ET AR N S B 185 AR -
58 75 2 R U S &ﬁ%%k%ﬁ
TPRE  BEHEXFESFIZE
ESWEERRE - EIBER TR
e B IR A B B At A AN SE 1R
FE e

e
FEERAERAIZEEFEME 2K
EESIRR - A BBEZEYH R (W0iE
R ERSTRARSGFEEZRAM
B NORRPTERIS Z M AR TY
BN FIEFE - AJERFERR
At EER AR TR AHERAARE
MGHE HERDHBRPEREZ
—HIRRA

BEESHIR
EREANZEARAUNEGEAS
S Eé%%ﬁ&ﬁ$%@%\%i
BEAXEB 2B TREFARIEER
We RTRENKELIZEEAESRE

iE °

For the year ended 31 March 2003

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Completed properties for sale

Completed properties for sale are classified under current
assets and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

Investments in securities
Investments in securities are recognised on a trade-date
basis and are initially measured at cost.

All securities other than held-to-maturity debt securities are
measured at fair value on subsequent reporting dates.

Where securities are held for trading purposes, unrealised
gains and losses are included in net profit or loss for the
period. For other securities, unrealised gains and losses are
dealt with in equity, until the security is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is included in net profit or loss for the period.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable,
direct labour costs and those overheads that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less all estimated costs to completion and costs
to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, contract revenue and costs are charged
to the income statement by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the balance sheet date,
as measured by surveys on work performed.
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Construction contracts — continued

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, revenue is recognised only to the extent
of contract costs incurred that is probable will be recoverable
and contract costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year
after adjusting for items which are non-assessable or
disallowed. Certain items of income and expense are
recognised for tax purposes in a different accounting period
from that in which they are recognised in the financial
statements. The tax effect of the resulting timing differences,
computed under the liability method, is recognised as
deferred taxation in the financial statements to the extent
that it is probable that a liability or an asset will crystallise
in the foreseeable future.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the date of acquisition.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
balance sheet as a finance lease obligation. Finance costs
are charged to the income statement over the term of the
relevant lease so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting period.

Rentals receivable or payable under operating leases are
credited or charged to income on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease.
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

Significant Accounting Policies — continued
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

Retirement benefits cost
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes are charged as expenses as they fall due.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in currencies other than Hong Kong Dollars are
initially recorded at the rates of exchange ruling on the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in such currencies are re-translated at the rates
ruling on the balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising
on exchange are dealt with in the income statement.

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
overseas operations are translated at exchange rates
prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rate for the
year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as
equity and transferred to the Group’s exchange reserve. Such
translation differences are recognised as income or as
expenses in the period in which the overseas operations
are disposed of.
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

Turnover and Segment Information

Turnover represents the aggregate of the amount of sales
proceeds attributable to the Group derived from property
development and investment activities, net amounts received
and receivable in respect of sales of goods and services
rendered to outside customers, investment income, rental
income from property letting and interest income from
provision of financial services to first hand purchasers of
the group’s developed properties during the year. During the
year ended 31 March 2002, construction income was
included as the Group’s turnover until the construction
business was spun off from the Group (see note 13). An
analysis of the Group’s turnover is as follows:

2003 2002

BEEET B&EET

HKS’'M HK$’'M

MHHEE Sales of properties 1,132.5 1,058.7
RS Services rendered 500.3 509.2
e WA Rental income 221.2 200.3
TEWA Investment income 189.4 167.9
HEZm Sales of manufacturing goods 106.6 98.7
WA Construction income — 64.7
IR IRIE 2 R BULA  Interest income from provision of financial services 8.7 0.5
2,158.7 2,100.0
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

Turnover and Segment Information — continued
The Group’s turnover and contribution to profit from

EEBENEEGFERZOIT operations analysed by principal activity and by geographical
location are as follows:
KD E Business segments
RERME  XEEBRZEEBI B For management purposes, the Group is currently organised
tEEBHEH - WEERR - WER into seven operating divisions: property development,
& RRHRE OB - BHEE & property investment, services provided, hotels, treasury
BRER - ZENIH N AEERERE investment, manufacturing and construction. These divisions
DHEER 2 BAE are the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment
information.
ERZENTEE_TE=F=-A= Segment information about these businesses for the year
T-REFEZHBEERZNNAT ended 31 March 2003 is presented below:
VEE NERE RUHS #5kE
Property Property Services BE Treasury B Bg HE &8
development investment provided Hotels investment  Manufacturing  Construction  Eliminations  Consolidated
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
HK$'M HK$'M HKS'M HK$'M HK$'M HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M HKS'M
BE-ZE=F For the year ended
ZB=T-ALEE 31 March 2003
g1E TURNOVER
e External sales 1,141.2 212 3274 1729 189.4 106.6 - - 2,158.7
AEREE Inter-segment sales* - 7.0 55 05 — - - (13.0) -
Gl Total 1,141.2 228.2 3329 173.4 189.4 106.6 — (13.0) 2,158.7
4 | RESULTS
PEEE Segment results 126.4 65.1 (50.3) 27.6 228 9.4 — 2010
FEHA Interest income 26.3
F2E2DEEAE  Unallocated corporate
expenses (59.3)
SEET Profit from operations 168.0
F%ER Finance costs (65.4)
MEBEDAZEE  Share of results of
associates (762.5) - — - - 1.3 0.2 (761.0)
AEAELNAZE  Share of results of jointly
controlled entities — - (11.5) — — — — (11.5)
HELH Amortisation of goodwill 1]
BRI B Loss before tax (677.6)
Ha Taxation (16.8)
RitkEE Loss after tax (694.4)
* NDIEFHEDRBREZEXHZE * Inter-segment sales are entered into in accordance with the

Btz (0B ETT - RHZERTIE
2EBITZNERERBF ZKA
(WEM) BEE -

relevant agreements, if any, governing those transactions in
which the pricing is with reference to prevailing market price
or actual cost incurred, if appropriate.
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it 4 At 31 March 2003

Zh=t+-A
Bk ASSETS
PEEE Segment assets
BELAZER Interests in associates
REDFIZER Interests in jointly controlled entities
TREHE Tax recoverable

FAHZATEE  Unallocated corporate assets

GREESE Consolidated total assets
af LIABILITIES

AERE Segment liabilities
RBak Taxation liabilties

#2EZLEEE  Unallocated corporate liabilties

maARLE Consolidated total liabilities

EfER OTHER INFORMATION

EXTE Capital additions

g Depreciation

REMZEREE  Deficit on revaluation of investment
properties

ETRRBEZ Impairment loss recognised
ERRHESR on certain development projects
EEREMERAE  Write-down of properties held for

TERFE sale to their net realisable value
FR5EH20HA  Impaiment loss recognised on
HEFE non-trading securities

HEL
Property
development
BEET
HK$'M

4,295.1
149.6

18215

745.9
14.9

61.6

38.6

For the year ended 31 March 2003

4,

Turnover and Segment Information — continued

Business segments — continued

nERE
Property
investment
AT
HKS'M

2,999.9
01

164.6

2221
9.7

96.6

RAERE
Services
provided
BEAT

HK$'M

667.2
03
53.0

900.3

67.6
72.8

EE
Hotels
BEAT
HK$'M

1,415.8

32.9

834
2.6

B5RE
Treasury
investment
AT
HKS'M

1,626.6

155

0.6

3

Manufacturing
BEAT

HKS'M

289.3
25.2

16.0

137
15.8

Bg &a
Construction  Consolidated
BEAT AEAT
HKS'M HKS'M

11,293.9
176.0 351.2
- 530
121
510.6

12,220.8

136 2,970.4

3,180.1

6,194.6

- 1132.7
- 115.8
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B2 —LFELE-—F=-H=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2003
4. EEBRHSBEER & 4. Turnover and Segment Information — continued
EY S Business segments — continued
VEE NERE RUHS BERE
Property Property Services BE Treasury B Bg HE &8
development investment provided Hotels investment  Manufacturing ~ Construction  Eliminations  Consolidated
BEAT HEAT AEAT BEAT HEAT AEAT BEAT HEAT AEAT
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

BE-EE-F For the year ended
ZR=T-ALEE 31 March 2002

EXE TURNOVER
e External sales 1,059.2 2003 343.7 165.5 1679 98.7 64.7 - 2,100.0
PEFHE Inter-segment sales* - 8.5 203 - — - 356.8 (385.6) -
ait Total 1,059.2 208.8 364.0 1655 167.9 98.7 415 (385.6) 2,100.0
E3 | RESULTS
PEXA Segment results 96.6 166.5 115 126 64.1 5.6 (18.8) 338.1
FEHA Interest income 52.0
FAEZRAEE  Unallocated corporate

expenses (43.5)
SEET Profit from operations 346.6
BBER Finance costs (55.3)
PEBEDAZEE  Share of results of

associates (1.3) (0.4) — - — 0.2 53 38
DEALDEEE  Share of results of jointly

controlled entities - - (133 - — - - (13.3)
HEER Amortisation of goodwill (15.1)
BHAERN Profit before tax 266.7
it Taxation (26.0)
RH & &R Profit after tax 240.7
* DIEREENRBREZERSHZE * Inter-segment sales are entered into in accordance with the

iR (B BT - K ZBRIIK relevant agreements, if any, governing those transactions in
2EBOIZMERERSGESZHA which the pricing is with reference to prevailing market price

(L@ ) 2 EETE © or actual cost incurred, if appropriate.
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4. EEBERHSBEER & 4. Turnover and Segment Information — continued
EY S Business segments — continued
NERE NERE RERE BERE
Property Property Services BE Treasury HiE BE &a
development investment provided Hotels investment ~ Manufacturing  Construction  Consolidated
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
HK$'M HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M HKS'M
RZBEzE At 31 March 2002
=h=t+-A
-1 ASSETS
PREE Segment assets 49459 2,455.3 652.1 1,549.7 1,744.0 296.5 - 11,6435
4 NS 3o Interests in associates 869.3 0.2 - - - 194 1706 1,059.2
REDAIZER Interests in jointly controlled entities - - 710 - - - - 710
AAEZDFAEE  Unallocated corporate assets 53.7
GREESE Consolidated total assets 12,8274
8% LIABILITIES
PEEE Segment liabilities 2,354.3 178.6 876.1 23.1 6.1 16.7 99.5 3,554.4
nBaE Taxation liabilties 373
AAEZAFAEE  Unallocated corporate liabilities 25189
FaaERE Consolidated total liabilities 6,110.6
&R OTHER INFORMATION
BEARE Capital additions 1,336.6 3314 18.1 79.2 — 124 2.0 1,779.7
ik Depreciation 16.1 53 69.8 27 - 19.0 36 1165
HBERRRAA  Writeoff of infrastructure costs 46.8 - - - - - - 46.8
ETERERL Impairment loss recognised
ERTGESR on certain development projects 96.7 - - - - - - 96.7
EfEENECEE  Deficit on revaluation of hotel properties - - - 25.2 - - - 25.2
FR5EH22HA  Impaiment loss recognised on
HEEE non-trading securities — — — — 119 — — 119
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

Turnover and Segment Information — continued
Geographical segments

For the two years ended 31 March 2003 and 2002, the
Group’s operations or its underlying operating assets are
located in Hong Kong, North America, South East Asia, the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), other than Hong Kong,
and Australia.

The property development, property investment and services
provided activities are carried out principally in Hong Kong,
South East Asia and the PRC. Hotel operation is carried out
in South East Asia. The operating assets of treasury
investment segment are principally located in North America.
The manufacturing business is principally carried out in the
PRC and Australia, whereas the construction business is
principally carried out in Hong Kong.

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s sales
by geographical location, irrespective of the origin of the
goods/services:

BRMENBE D ZHER
Sales by

geographical location
2003 2002
BEEET B&EET
HKS'M HK$'M
BE Hong Kong 1,788.3 1,644.0
Rz South East Asia 184.5 183.4
=M North America 92.2 197.3
HE - NEERS PRC, other than Hong Kong 79.2 63.2
B Australia 14.5 12.1
2,158.7 2,100.0
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4. EEBERHSBEER & 4. Turnover and Segment Information — continued
IE 58— & Geographical segments — continued
TRNDEEEMEMEBUESE D 25 The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
HEERME  UWEYE  BEEK segment assets and additions to property, plant and
B BREMERGEE ERDME equipment, investment properties and properties held for/
IIRBZDN under development, analysed by the geographical location

in which the assets are located:

RENERFTRE
BRIPYEZRE
Additions to property,
plant and equipment,

PEEEREE investment properties
Carrying amount of and properties held for/
segment assets under development
2003 2002 2003 2002
B&EET B &E T B&EET B &ET
HKS'M HK$'M HKS$'M HK$'M
B Hong Kong 7,779.6 8,895.4 339.4 1,397.5
R South East Asia 1,792.0 1,931.7 121.8 108.6
=M North America 1,385.1 1,634.5 0.4 0.2
FE - AEESE PRC, other than Hong Kong 1,236.4 341.6 671.1 273.4
B Australia 27.7 24.2 — —
12,220.8 12,827.4 1,132.7 1,779.7
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

5. Cost of Sales

Included in the cost of sales are the following items:

Arising from property development activities:

Write-off of infrastructure costs

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
certain development projects

Write-down of properties held for sale to their
net realisable value

Reversal of impairment loss previously

recognised in a development project

Arising from treasury investment activities:

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
non-trading securities

6. Other Operating Income

Other operating income includes the following:

Unrealised holding gain on trading securities
Gain on disposal of associates

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

2003 2002
BEET BEEIT
HKS'M HK$'M
— (46.8)
(61.6) (96.7)
(38.6) —
17.9 —
(82.3) (143.5)
(0.6) (11.9)
2003 2002
BEET BEEIT
HKS$'M HK$'M
46.3 54.3
5.0 —

2.8 —
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

7. Profit from Operations

Profit from operations has been arrived at after
charging (crediting):

Auditors’ remuneration

Depreciation
Owned assets
Assets under finance leases

Loss (gain) on disposal of property, plant and
equipment

Operating lease rentals in respect of land and
buildings

Net reversal of allowance for doubtful debt on
loans receivable

Net exchange gain

Bank and other interest income

Interest income from provision of financial services
Total interest income

Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration)
Redundancy payments

Total staff costs

Net rental income under operating leases on
Investment properties
Other properties

Less: Outgoings

Expenses capitalised in costs of contract work:

Operating lease rentals in respect of plant and
machinery

Depreciation

2003 2002
BEET HEBT
HKS'M HK$'M
3.2 3.1
115.7 112.9
0.1 0.3
6.6 (7.1)
12.4 9.1
(14.9) —
(4.2) (14.1)
(26.3) (52.0)
(8.7) (0.5)
(35.0) (52.5)
302.8 305.0
4.7 —
307.5 305.0
(213.2) (192.2)
(8.0) (8.1)
7.8 4.9
(213.4) (195.4)
— 4.4

— 3.3
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B2 —LFELE-—F=-H=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2003
8. HMKEHR 8. Finance Costs
2003 2002
BEETT B&EET
HKS'M HK$'M
TH@MEIEER 2 H 8 Interest on
ERAFANBEREEZ Bank loans wholly repayable within
RITER five years (67.0) (69.8)
BERAFANEBREEY Bank loans not wholly repayable within
IRITER five years (0.4) (0.9)
ARAFRNEBHEEZ Other borrowings wholly repayable within
HimE & five years (71.3) (87.7)
BIEE KA Total borrowing costs (138.7) (158.4)
W FTABREBREE KA Less: Amounts included in the cost of
qualifying assets 81.5 108.5
(57.2) (49.9)
RITHE Bank charges (8.2) (5.4)
(65.4) (55.3)
9. DIEHMEQTEE 9. Share of Results of Associates
DEBMERBEETREREESG Included in the share of results of associates is an amount
Tung Chung Station Development relating to the share of loss of Tung Chung Station
Company Limited ([TCSDCLJ) 762.2 Development Company Limited (“TCSDCL”) of HK$762.2
BEAL(ZCEZE-_F 148851 million (2002: HK$1.4 million).

IR FRIA -
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10.

EErTEBEFEEME

ExMeE

BIUFRTEFHS

HITESME
e REMEN
EARAE R R

BEE2HMEER S BIAT

£ —1,000,000% 7T

1,000,001%8 7T — 1,500,000/ T
1,500,001/% 7T —2,000,000/% 7T
2,000,001 7T — 2,500,000/ 7T
2,500,001/ 7T — 3,000,000/ 7T
4,000,001 7T — 4,500,000/ 7T
5,000,001/ 7T — 5,500,000/% 7T
5,500,001 7T — 6,000,000/% 7T
8,500,001 7t —9,000,000/% 7T

For the year ended 31 March 2003

10. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid Employees’

Remuneration

Directors’ Remuneration

Fees to independent non-executive directors

Remuneration to executive directors:

Fees
Salaries and other benefits

Retirement benefits contributions

2003 2002
BEHEET B 2B
HK$'M HK$'M
0.3 0.3
16.7 19.5
1.2 1.6
17.9 21.1
18.2 21.4

Emoluments of the directors were within the following bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000
HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000

EEZAK
Number of directors
2003 2002
5 7
— 1
1 2
1 1
1 J—
— 1
1 —
1 J—
— 1
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

10. Directors’ and Five Highest Paid Employees
Remuneration — continued
Employees’ Remuneration

For the year ended 31 March 2003, the five highest paid
individuals of the Group included three (2002: three)
executive directors, whose emoluments are disclosed above.

The emoluments of the remaining two (2002: two) emp

were as follows:

loyees

2003 2002

BEE®ET BEET

HKS’'M HK$’'M

e kEMER Salaries and other benefits 5.0 5.0
R RAE AL 3R Retirement benefits contributions 0.5 0.2
5.5 5.2

REZMEARNDRIAT

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

2002

BEAH
Number of employees
2003
2,000,001/ 7T — 2,500,000/ HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 —
2,500,001/ 7C — 3,000,000/ 7 HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2
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BHE FTE=F=FA=1+—HIFFEF For the year ended 31 March 2003
11. H1E 11. Taxation
2003 2002
BEEET B&EET
HKS'M HK$'M
THBE: The charge comprises:
R EFE 5T FE R TG 7% Hong Kong Profits Tax calculated at 16%
ME16% (ZZTTZF : 16%) (2002: 16%) of the estimated assessable
STEZEEFGH profit for the year
—REE — current year (3.6) (15.7)
—EFBEBETR — underprovision in prior year — (3.2)
REBREREERA B E Overseas tax calculated at rates prevailing
HE e E in respective jurisdictions (7.5) (5.3)
DIMBERR 2B BFEH Share of Hong Kong Profits Tax of associates (2.5) (1.8)
EFERLTE (F7E33) Deferred taxation (note 33)
— TR 2 G — attributable to a change in tax rate (3.2) —
(16.8) (26.0)
AFE 2 BIEL LB EFERERFHIE The tax charge for the year has been relieved by
EBEMRLLH8.7TEERT(ZEE = approximately HK$8.7 million (2002: HK$8.7 million) as a

F8TABBEIL) °

result of the utilisation of tax losses brought forward.

REE 7 KRBT IEZ EIE 5 a0 The movement in unrecognised deferred taxation for the year

T~

AN JE A B P &= BB 1 B B
IR EELIET
MIERHE 2 RERS

IR E R B AR B AT A
MBmRITEZ
=5

REtZHAEE

is as follows:

2003 2002
BEEETT BEET
HKS'M HK$'M
Deferred taxation credit for the year arising
from tax effect of timing differences
attributable to:
Difference between depreciation allowances
for tax purposes and depreciation charged in
the financial statements 26.0 1.8
Taxation losses accrued 23.1 8.2
49.1 10.0
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12. BRE

For the year ended 31 March 2003

Bk E LR 5D 2 Special dividend in specie of shares

BRI IR B of HCHL

EETRERERELZRE -

—EECFEZRBIRETIAR QRIS
FEBalEIERBER AR ([HEE
B AEY DIk EERIER N ’ﬁ%\
FTRZEZZF—A=ZAH/IAR
hﬁ%ﬁZhﬁ'nﬁi%ﬂ%Zﬁ
EE M FEL3ANILARE AR © IR T)
REFASIKRA R RIIRG IR LR i A
R 2 EAERELT

13. SIFEBAR
RZBZ_F—F  ARFAFERABE
B DIk 270k B B2 2 51%%
ez ASHRBR AR I e FREE
MHEEH 2 TREDHF - DRI
15 A SR 2 AR 1 78 Ik 1 A% 2 35 £
=440

DIWEBRIEEN —TZT _F—F+
B - REBEDNREANEES
BERAERIEREBEER _TT—F
TZAZ=+—HAZEAKREE - 2K
% FBERKAANRAREEENZ
M+ 2 BERE e

DIFEBEIE s EMEC R34
AANARLRE ©

12. Dividend
2003 2002
HEET B&BIT
HK$'M HK$'M
— 166.6

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year.

The special dividend in 2002 represented a dividend in
specie of shares of Hanison Construction Holdings Limited
(“HCHL") distributed to the shareholders of the Company on
the register of members of the Company on 3 January 2002
in connection with the spin-off of HCHL as explained in note
13. The distribution is being made on the basis of one share
of HCHL for every eight shares held in the Company.

13. Spin-Off of HCHL
In January 2002, the Company spun off its construction
related business comprising a sub-group of 8 companies by
distribution in specie of its 51% equity interest in HCHL to
its shareholders in the distribution ratio of 1 share in HCHL
for every 8 shares in the Company.

The spin-off of HCHL was completed on 10 January 2002.
The total value of the dividend represents the attributable
consolidated carrying value of HCHL as at 31 December
2001 calculated in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policies. Following the distribution, HCHL has become a 49%
owned associate of the Company.

A summary of the effect of the spin-off of HCHL is set out in
note 34.

HKR INTERNATIONAL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2002/2003 89



Bt %5 8 oAk MY A

Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-FF=F=A=+—AULTE

14.

15.

BR (BB BF-EXK
BRER(EE) BN TDREBERFEREF
EIB700.6EE8BL(ZET_F : 41
F138.8B & A L) RFAND /TR
1,157,378,029 (=TT —F :
1,157,378,0290%) 5T & -

EARITERBRERFARZITEAMED
H&Eﬁ?gﬂjy E&I/XEH #—72
=FZEETRER -

RANE 2 R (TR D
BER-BB-—FEZTHHEAS -
HARAHHE BT F 2 HEER
BA -

For the year ended 31 March 2003

14.

(Loss) Earnings per Share — Basic

The calculation of basic (loss) earnings per share is based
on the net loss for the year of HK$700.6 million (2002: a
profit of HK$138.8 million) and on the 1,157,378,029
shares (2002: 1,157,378,029 shares) in issue during the
year.

The computation of diluted loss per share in 2003 has not
assumed the exercise of the outstanding options during the
year as this would result in a decrease in the loss per share.

The computation of diluted earnings per share in 2002 has
not assumed the exercise of the Company’s options because
their exercise prices were higher than the average market
price for the Company’s shares for 2002.

REWE 15. Investment Properties
2003 2002
BEEET BEET
HKS'M HK$'M

®BGE AT VALUATION

F4 At beginning of the year 2,222.0 1,855.5
B Currency realignment 3.7 1.8

BYE - BEMEBREA Transfer from property, plant and equipment
(BtzE16) (note 16) 29.1 4.9
NE Additions 39.9 329.0
& Disposals (6.2) —
o3 ¥ B Bl 22 On spin-off of HCHL — (1.2)
=i (B8 B (Deficit) surplus on revaluation (97.9) 32.0
FIK At end of the year 2,190.6 2,222.0
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W-FF=F=A=+-0 %8

For the year ended 31 March 2003

15. Investment Properties — continued
An analysis of the investment properties of the Group held

BHEZREYWES AT at 31 March 2003 is as follows:
2003 2002
HEETT BEET
HKS'M HK$'M
IR BB AIMBIE 2 K A ZH# Freehold outside Hong Kong 20.1 20.1
UREBAIIMNEE 2 KRHEFL Long leases outside Hong Kong 483.8 379.8
URBEBZRBEHEY Long leases in Hong Kong 64.0 58.3
UREEZREHELY Medium term leases in Hong Kong 1,622.7 1,763.8
2,190.6 2,222.0

BREMEZEXREETARN T 2B
RAUBXMBEMTR_-_TZE=F=A
=t BERARMERELETHEE -

fh{EETT &M

Name of valuer

BERITERAF
DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited

Associated Property Consultants Pte. Ltd.

N&A Appraisal Company Limited

R-_ZET=ZFZA=Z+—8 A£H
R—IBREYHE BTN EEPE
B50% R - FZIBIREMERMBRE
NHERZEEEAT36.2BEBT (=
TE 4 : 820.8ABBIL) ©

The professional valuations of investment properties at 31
March 2003 were carried out by the following independent
firms of qualified professional valuers on an open market
value basis.

REMREEZHE

Location of investment properties

BB KR EHE MM R

Hong Kong and other parts of the PRC
N3

Singapore

=H

Thailand

At 31 March 2003, the Group had a 50% interest in a jointly
controlled asset in respect of an investment property. The
carrying value recognised in these financial statements
amounted to HK$736.2 million (2002: HK$820.8 million).

HKR INTERNATIONAL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2002/2003 91



B iR Notes to the Financial Statements

HE—_FTET=F=-HA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2003
16. Y% - BERZHE 16. Property, Plant and Equipment
A BE Eh
BRR EERRE HEREE MRAE
KEIR LR HENE  Fumiture, Plant, Ferries,
EENE  L#HREZF  Construction  Commercial £6 fixtures  machinery launches
Hotel Land and in and leisure Leasehold and and and motor @
properties huildings progress facilities improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
HEAT BEET BEAT HEAT BEET BEAT AEET BEET BEAT
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
58 THE GROUP
RESME COST OR VALUATION
RZEE-F  At1April 2002
MA-H 818.5 413.6 25.0 4775 115.0 109.9 236.3 469.3 2,665.1
L Currency realignment 2.7 1.7 0.4 - 0.2 05 1.0 0.4 219
BEEGEE/ Transfer from properties
ERPNE held for/under
BAHEL)  development (note 17) - - 0.7 - - - - - 0.7
IEMBLR  Acquired on acquisition
KRG of a subsidiary - - - - 6.8 114 - 0.9 191
RE Additions 34.3 154.5 66.0 2.5 6.2 383 12 18.8 327.8
ENNE Reclassifications 416 - (41.6) - (0.1) 0.1 — - —
BEARENE  Transfer to investment
(Bi3t15) properties (note 15) - (3L.0) - - - - - - (31.0)
e Disposals (49 - - - (135) 6.) (23.0) (36) (5.7)
SERBFE  Surplus on revaluation
— net 1.7 — - - — - - — 1.7
RRBE Cost adjustment - (3.6) - - - — _ _ 6)
RZEE=F
=F=1—H At 31 March 2003 914.9 535.2 50.5 480.0 114.6 153.5 221.5 485.8 2,956.0
0 Comprising:
RE At cost - 535.2 50.5 480.0 114.6 153.5 2215 485.8 2,041.1
EEEE— Mprofessional
2 valuation — 2003 914.9 - - - - - — - 914.9
9149 535.2 50.5 480.0 114.6 1535 2215 485.8 2,956.0
i DEPRECIATION
i3 At 1 April 2002
mA-A — 70.2 - 217.0 76.6 86.5 1187 186.1 755.1
FLEE Currency realignment - 1.2 - - - 0.4 04 0.3 23
KEEEE  Provided for the year - 140 - 210 139 120 2.8 3041 115.8
ERAKEME  Eiminated on transfer to
Bk investment properties - (1.9) - - - - - - (1.9
HERHE Eliminated on disposals - - - - (12.9 (5.4) (23.0) (3.6) (44.9)
RZEZ=F At 31 March 2003
=h=1-H - 835 - 238.0 7.6 935 1209 212.9 826.4
REFE NET BOOK VALUES
RZET=% At 31 March 2003
-“B=t-H 914.9 451.7 50.5 242.0 37.0 60.0 100.6 212.9 2,129.6
RZEEZE At 31 March 2002
=f=+-H 818.5 343.4 25.0 260.5 38.4 23.4 117.6 283.2 1,910.0
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16. ¥ - BERSZE & 16. Property, Plant and Equipment — continued

&Fh
HERRZE
HEmELEE Furniture, AE
Leasehold fixtures and Motor At
improvements equipment vehicles Total
B&EE T B &% T BE&EET B&EET
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
KAT THE COMPANY
R{E COoST
RZETF At 1 April 2002 5.0 3.4 4.2 12.6
MA—A
NE Additions — 0.2 — 0.2
& Disposals — (0.2) (1.0) (1.1)
RZEE=%F At 31 March 2003
—A=+—8 5.0 3.5 3.2 11.7
e DEPRECIATION
RZEEZF At 1 April 2002 5.0 3.1 2.5 10.6
MA—A
NELEE Provided for the year — 0.2 0.5 0.7
o B BR Eliminated on disposals — (0.1) (1.0) (1.1)
RZEE=F At 31 March 2003
—A=+—8 5.0 3.2 2.0 10.2
IREEE NET BOOK VALUES
RZETE=F At 31 March 2003
—A=+—8H — 0.3 1.2 1.5
RZEZ_F At 31 March 2002
=A=+—8H — 0.3 1.7 2.0
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16.

R-FF=£=A=1—F  A%E
82 MEDER T RET 2 DI
mF

For the year ended 31 March 2003

16. Property, Plant and Equipment — continued
An analysis of the hotel properties and land and buildings
of the Group held as at 31 March 2003 is as follows:

B JE ) 3 THREF
Hotel properties Land and buildings
2003 2002 2003 2002
BEET B &E¥ T BEET BEET
HKS’'M HK$'M HKS’'M HK$’'M
R EAEAIMEE  Freehold outside
KA M ERE Hong Kong 473.2 459.0 — —
MR EBAIMBE  Long leases outside
Z REAE A Hong Kong 441.7 359.5 0.9 0.9
MR EBAIMNEE  Medium term leases
Z AR A outside Hong Kong — — 150.4 156.2
R ESZKHTEL) Long leases in Hong Kong — — 153.0 29.5
MR EEZPHEY Medium term leases
in Hong Kong — — 142.8 151.9
URAEBZEEF4 Short leases in Hong Kong — — 4.6 4.9
914.9 818.5 451.7 343.4

BEMEZEXRMEETIAAT 2B
RABEM[MEMTR _TZE=F=FH
=t HARAAMERERARERE
1T1&ME -

HEMTERE

Name of valuer

CB Richard Ellis (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Associated Property Consultants Pte. Ltd.

REMNZDE  BERRBRER

HZERmMEFEASOBBEB L (ZEZ
—F i 16HEBBIL) °

The professional valuations of hotel properties as at 31
March 2003 were carried out by the following independent
firms of qualified professional valuers, on an open market
value, existing use basis.

TBIEMREEE &

Location of hotel properties

EETE=EN
Bangkok, Thailand
TN B R

Sentosa, Singapore

The net book value of property, plant and equipment held
under finance leases at the balance sheet date amounted
to HK$5.0 million (2002: HK$1.6 million).
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17. B8R BRPYE

F_EE=F-A=+—HIFE

KEE
RAEREEE
RZEEF
mA—H
AR
NE
S B A A
EETYE  BE
K& (fist1e)
ET#ERERZ
BRI EEE
(B 5%)
HBEFEDHER
VEREY SE=E4E]
ERAFELES
LES

RZEE=F
=A=+—H

RBEATEARTHE
2

KAMEFERE
REIELQ
hEITE A

IR R BB AN R 2 b AP R
SERTYEREEE ST =F=
A=t—HBHAfLEEXfzLtibE D
HAZhTH A589.8F &B T °

THE GROUP
COST OR CARRYING VALUE
At 1 April 2002

Currency realignment

Additions

On disposal of subsidiaries

Transfer to property, plant
and equipment (note 16)

Impairment loss recognised
on certain development
projects (Note)

Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in previous years

Transfer to properties held
for sale

At 31 March 2003

The properties are held
under:

Freehold
Long leases
Medium term leases

For the year ended 31 March 2003

17. Properties Held for/under Development

Hth S RE BRBRHYE
Other properties held

-] for/under development

BZREEH R NRER

Discovery Bay & BAhith &
development in outside st
project Hong Kong Hong Kong Total
BE&EET B &% T BE&EET B&EET
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
1,496.7 171.3 251.8 1,919.8
— — 11.2 11.2
124.0 0.6 621.3 745.9
— (164.6) — (164.6)
— (0.7) — (0.7)
(36.2) (25.4) (61.6)
— — 17.9 17.9
(9.7) — (9.7)
1,574.8 6.6 876.8 2,458.2
— 242.9 242.9
— 412.4 412.4
1,574.8 6.6 221.5 1,802.9
1,574.8 6.6 876.8 2,458.2

Included above other properties held for/under development
outside Hong Kong an amount of HK$589.8 million was the
land cost installments paid by the Group up to 31 March
2003.
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17.

BRE BEPYE-&
%$$ﬁ~$%lﬁﬁﬁﬁim%ﬂ

EHZEBMINEETRLEM
ﬁﬁﬁy%iWWEL%EOEEﬁ
Mg AEBEAXNTHEERE
FELFERAES  FBEEBERTHR
RIEEERE ([HRMBEKAL) HA
K#1,305.8B 87T (B%M1,232.68
BAETT) o LIl TR L& T
DENFRATRNERE  SHRETE
BE—HNRER_SETNFRAL
- ERIEE ZEFHERA (TEEL
HRAEKAR) BARKS 174288
T (FE R 2,996.45 8B T) °

BESN - AREERE R BT T8
THEREBRTERRER - $RELE
BB - Rz EdihE - RAHE
BN — T =F+—-ARNT
REE -

Rz EBFRER_EE=F=A=
+—HA642.8FHEE T » LAEFA
B s 39Tl 2 BT #) & AN A IE ©

fifet : WARFE  AEEHEZERIEHE
TRPE - WRSEBU R HEM
EENTIER Z HERFEZEER
HEZAKE S5 - BELNEE
Kigon e 2 BARZRKARET
ERIFAECLOAEBL(ZEE
T4 143 5B 8B ZHRMAA
ZEREELE MBS RE o utsh
E2RERAR Zh T EIFE
% EARFERERERELT.OA
BB (RH5E44) -

For the year ended 31 March 2003

17. Properties Held for/under Development — continued

During the year, the Group has entered into agreements with
the Jingan Land Bureau and the Jingan Government for the
purchase of pieces of land in Jingan District, Shanghai, PRC
for redevelopment purpose. Pursuant to the relevant
agreements, the Group is required to pay an aggregate
amount which comprises land use rights costs, demolition
and resettlement costs and urban utilities construction costs
(“land and related cost”) in a total sum of RMB1,305.8
million (equivalent to HK$1,232.6 million). The land cost is
paid up by unequal installments for the relevant pieces of
land and the last payment is scheduled to be made in May
2004. The estimated total cost (excluding land and related
cost) for the redevelopment project is RMB3,174.2 million
(equivalent to HK$2,996.4 million).

In addition, the Group will inspect and take possession of
the relevant pieces of land upon the completion of demolition
and resettlement work and urban utilities construction by
the Jingan Government. Pursuant to the above mentioned
agreements, the first piece of land is scheduled to be
delivered to the Group in November 2003.

The unpaid installments of land cost of HK$642.8 million
as at 31 March 2003 is included in the contracted capital
commitments as set out in note 39.

Note: During the year, the Group has undertaken a review of its
development projects to assess the recoverable amount with
reference to valuations made by independent qualified
professional valuers. Development costs amounting to
HK$61.6 million (2002: HK$143.5 million) in relation to
infrastructure costs and certain development projects in Hong
Kong and overseas was written off/impaired. In addition, a
reversal of impairment loss of HK$17.9 million has been
made in the current year by reference to the estimated net
realisable value of the development project (see note 44).
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

18. Goodwill

THE GROUP

COST

At 1 April 2002

Increase in interest in subsidiaries

Acquisition of subsidiaries
At 31 March 2003
AMORTISATION

At 1 April 2002

Charge for the year

At 31 March 2003

NET BOOK VALUES
At 31 March 2003

At 31 March 2002

BEET
HK$'M

240.9
0.7
1.7

243.3

238.0
1.4

239.4

3.9

2.9

The goodwill represents the premium arising on the
acquisition of subsidiaries and is amortised over a period

of five to ten years. The amortisation for the year of HK$1.4

million was included in administrative expenses.
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19. B AR 2R 19. Interests in Subsidiaries
AT
THE COMPANY
2003 2002
BEEET B&EET
HKS'M HK$'M
EEMRG - RRE Unlisted shares, at cost 1,978.6 1,978.6
JE U B /BB N R 3k IE Amounts due from subsidiaries 8,342.4 8,246.7
B AR z#z=m 2 Impairment loss recognised in value of
EERBEEE interests in subsidiaries (3,264.4) (2,381.1)
7,056.6 7,844.2
RAFE  NEBEFNEMRBARRER During the year, the Group reviewed the carrying amounts of
ZHRHEE - WEMETHEARER its interests in subsidiaries and identified that the estimated
MSEEMNEMEE 2R ARR SR discounted net future cash flows from certain subsidiaries
SFBE((JlEeE])EAKREE - (the “Recoverable Amounts”) which are estimated using
Hit  ZEHBRARIZEAEDEAK market borrowing rates are less than the carrying amounts.
EREWNB AR S B 2R B2 - Accordingly, the carrying amounts of these subsidiaries are

reduced to their respective Recoverable Amounts.

RKABIR—_EEZE=F=ZA=+—HZ Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at
ZEEWNB AR ZFBERW 42 31 March 2003 are set out in note 42.
VAR B o
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

BERNT 2R 20. Interests in Associates
KEH
THE GROUP
2003 2002
HEETT BEET
HKS'M HK$’'M
W Listed
JEIEEEFE Share of net assets 175.9 169.9
LT Unlisted
EEEaEFE Share of net liabilities (2,134.6) (1,403.3)
FEAG RS E (M 5) Share of unamortised goodwill (Note) 1.1 0.6
#¥7 FTCSDCL Advances to TCSDCL 2,223.4 2,199.8
265.8 967.0
JFE L L Ath Bt 2 R B FR0R Amounts due from other associates 66.8 77.5
332.6 1,044.5
—REMBE AR ZHE Market value of a listed associate 33.4 52.8

AARME31I% (ZEZ=F © 31%) #Exm
ZTCSDCL » AEXE X% AT RRIMIL
LEE-HYEERREBEE F@E%ZA
A BHE - BFF5RHE43 -

The Company has a 31% (2002: 31%) equity interest in
TCSDCL, which is engaged in the development of Tung Chung
Station Package Il Project. Extracts of the financial
information of TCSDCL are set out in note 43.

Details of the principal associates of the Group as at 31
March 2003 are set out in note 42.
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

20. Interests in Associates — continued

Note:

Movement of goodwill attributable to associates is as follows:

COST

At 1 April 2002

Increase in interest in an associate
At 31 March 2003

AMORTISATION

At 1 April 2002

Charge for the year

At 31 March 2003

NET BOOK VALUES
At 31 March 2003

At 31 March 2002

AEE
THE GROUP
Fa#sT
HK$'M

0.7
1.1

1.8

0.1
0.6

0.7

1.1

0.6
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21. Interests in Jointly Controlled Entities

ZRIEAFMBRITZETRERE
MIEFEKFE - WEARZZEET=F
TARER - Al - RZZTZT=F=
A=+—H 96HEF L (T
F9.088BL) BRIIIEREE
B - ZEERAURE BT ERNE

AEE
THE GROUP
2003 2002
BEET BEBT
HKS'M HK$'M
JEIEEEFE Share of net assets 20.4 31.9
REHEE FFsH) Unamortised goodwill (Note) 21.7 28.8
42.1 60.7
BEF—REERARIZER Loan to a jointly controlled entity * — 9.0
42.1 69.7
* BF—REERARZERTER - * The loan to a jointly controlled entity is unsecured, bears

interest at 3% above 3 month US$ Singapore Inter Bank
Offered Rate and is repayable by October 2003. Accordingly,
the loan of HK$9.6 million (2002: HK$9.0 million) is
classified as current as at 31 March 2003. The loan is
convertible to the share capital of the jointly controlled entity
when relevant conditions are met.

BEZAERAZEA -

AEER -_ZT=F=A=+—RH%
FTRRERAZHBERHTFE42R M

BB -

izt
BERFREHBEZEHMT

RE
RZEE-FNHA—ABK

—TEE=F=A=+—H
e
NR-_TBE_FmMA—H
FELZH

Note:

Details of the jointly controlled entities of the Group as at
31 March 2003 are set out in note 42.

Movement of goodwill attributable to jointly controlled entities is

as follows:

COST
At 1 April 2002 and
31 March 2003

AMORTISATION
At 1 April 2002
Charge for the year

At 31 March 2003

NET BOOK VALUES
At 31 March 2003

At 31 March 2002

TEH
THE GROUP
BEBT
HK$'M

33.5

4.7

7.1

11.8
21.7
——
28.8
I
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B EFLEF

"HERE

*R5

BAES—EE™

X5

BAFBESREBRE
g
=)
FLEH

BEHESFNERES
BREMS :
£
L™

RHESFHER

A=1+—HIEFE

For the year ended 31 March 2003

22. Investments in Securities

Non-trading

Equity securities — Unlisted

Trading

Equity securities and managed
investment funds:
Listed
Unlisted

Debt securities and managed
bond portfolios:
Listed
Unlisted

Total trading securities

#5EH
THE GROUP

2003 2002
FEET  HEET
HKS'M HK$'M
32.8 54.3
132.9 183.9
844.1 819.9
977.0 1,003.8
253.6 211.6
219.7 321.5
473.3 533.1
1,450.3 1,536.9
1,483.1 1,591.2
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B2 —LFELE-—F=-H=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2003
22, BERE & 22. Investments in Securities — continued
KEH
THE GROUP
2003 2002
HEETT BEET
HKS'M HK$’'M
EWH Analysis for reporting purposes:
T ED Current 1,450.3 1,562.4
JERED Non-current 32.8 28.8
1,483.1 1,591.2
FHESEME: Market value of listed securities:
REEL™ Listed in Hong Kong 1.6 7.8
RAEINET Listed overseas 384.9 387.7
386.5 395.5
RPFEHRE - Trading securities represent:
BEEFEEES (WD Managed treasury investment funds (note 1) 975.4 995.9
BRESFEEMAS (W2 Managed bond portfolios (note 2) 440.8 231.8
RITREAMI AR T Securities issued by banks and other
E 5 financial institutions 24.0 285.4
HFEANBRBBITZES Securities issued by corporate entities 10.1 23.8
1,450.3 1,536.9
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22. BERE B

For the year ended 31 March 2003

22. Investments in Securities — continued

rEE
THE GROUP
2003 2002
BEET HEBT
HKS'M HK$'M
BEEEAFREBESIRELHS  The maturity of the debt securities and
ZEIERHMT managed bond portfolio falls into:

=EAR Within three months — 285.4

—ERABE—FNA Over three months but less than one year — —

—FRERAFNA Over one year but less than five years 9.0 —

AFE Over five years 15.6 15.3

REREREHA Unspecified 448.7 232.4

473.3 533.1

Hiat - Notes:

1. EBEESREESHILEREKIER 1. The managed treasury investment funds are managed by
EBIR  REEeERKREERBE professional investment managers and the underlying
[EARFESHEA ° investments of these funds include investments in equity

securities.

2. EREFREAESHEHERELERN 2.  The managed bond portfolios are managed by professional

BIE  RERAMRS T EEENRR
17 BITR MBI R A E e
BTZES -

investment managers and these portfolios mainly comprise
securities issued by central banks, banks and other financial
institutions and corporate entities.
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By

23.

F_EE=F-A=+—HIFE

Htt&E

eI 18 73 B R
(Mt 5Ea)

For the year ended 31 March 2003

23. Other Assets

Mortgage installment

receivables (note a)

REE RATF

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2003 2002 2003 2002
BEEET BEET BEEET BEET
HKS’'M HK$'M HKS'M HK$'M
300.7 85.8 _ —
31.2 — —_ —
13.6 13.7 — —
9.1 2.7 —_ —
5.4 5.4 2.1 2.1
— 217.6 — —
—_ 17.8 —_ —
360.0 343.0 2.1 2.1

Notes:

MNER7T 2 KEITFF Long term deposits with
(MS5EDb) a bank (note b)

BENREES Option fee paid
(M 5Ee) (note ¢)

FEUE K (M 7Ed) Loans receivable (note d)

FLEMESFR Unlisted debentures and
HtEE other assets

B FFEENTZ  Loans to investee companies
BX

YIEIER 2B Deposits paid in respect
b of property projects

Hfet

(a) EUIRIES BEFRETAREEY (a)

ERRERZEE - WHRZFBIR
BHISMERE  TEERBEMEL
ERTNEE - TFRAURARTZAR
@ - bR T A B R IEE =

RIBER - R —F

MEH 2 eI R3S

DHER10.8EE T (ZRE
F 1LIABED ERRERDEE
ZRERWE BRRA -

(b) EHEZRNDERERTIESHINR_Z (b)
ENENARE—=F=AHFHA
TEHFH15.6EE8B T R15.688

BT e

The mortgage installment receivables represent the financing
provided to buyers of development properties of the Group.
The amounts bear interest at market rate and are receivable
by installments over a period of not more than 20 years from
the sale of the relevant flats. The receivables are secured by
a second mortgage over the properties. The portion of
mortgage installment receivables due within one year of
HK$10.8 million (2002: HK$1.1 million) is included as trade
receivables in current assets.

The long term deposits represent fixed deposits placed with
a bank of which HK$15.6 million and HK$15.6 million will
mature in August 2008 and March 2013 respectively.
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BE—_LTLE=—F=-H=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2003
23. HEE & 23. Other Assets — continued
WieE - —4& Notes: — continued
(c) REEEBDEUENASBERZA & (¢) The option fee paid represents an initial fee paid to Castro
FIREEE — R EBEMF) @ e M E Valley Properties, Inc. (“CVPI”) for an option granted to the
KRN EYEThe Castro Valley Group to purchase The Castro Valley Ranch, a property located
Ranch [A]Castro Valley Properties, in Santa Clara County, California, United States of America.
Inc. ([CVPI) 2 EHIE A - IR The amount will be refundable to the Group pursuant to an
—IRRIEZIEMERR 2 BE - RE agreement to terminate the property development. CVPI is a
B @ROGEAEER - CVPITI—IAE related party of a trust, the discretionary objects of which
FECBEAT  ZERCEETEY include Mr CHA Chi Ming, the Chairman of the Company.

REEARRIEESHEREL

(dy EREZFNR—FREBLZHMDAELD (d)  The portion of loans receivable due within one year of HK$4.5
BEAL(CETE-F B ERER million (2002: Nil) is included as other receivables in current
RBEEZ EtEWREIER - assets.

24, FE 24. Inventories
AEE
THE GROUP
2003 2002
BEET BEXT
HKS'M HK$'M

S Consumable stores 35.1 31.2

R Raw materials 13.5 12.1

FRUPK mh Work in progress 1.3 1.6

BIRK [ Finished goods 32.6 28.9

82.5 73.8

RAE At cost 81.4 72.7

AR 5E (R m) At net realisable value (finished goods) 1.1 1.1

82.5 73.8
25. SFERREPYE FEHEYWE 25. Properties under Development for Sale/Properties
Held for Sale
FERERYERBIELEMESM The properties under development for sale and properties
REBIWARBENES - held for sale are situated in Hong Kong and are held under

medium term leases.
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26.

EWE 5 EX
AEEGRTEFPZEERRTERN—
RIEVIET - WWEHEMS @ HE
BFREMEBEMELREERT
METE - MEHE—MNELRER
HWRA - G RAATEEZ SR
T EERARTRAMEERTES
W2 BT o BRE R ARTER FUE
TENRE  MEMRSASMN LS -
G AT ROB 5 RS 2 B B AR B kEFRD
Braft o  EEMRETEPH—R
ZEHH30E908 1% -

s B REWE 58RI 2 BRE D4
T~

BN

0 — 60K
61 — 90K
HiBI0K

Not yet due
BH Overdue:

0 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
Over 90 days

For the year ended 31 March 2003

26. Trade Receivables

The credit period allowed by the Group to its customers is
dependent on the general practice in the industry concerned.
For property sales, sales terms vary for each property project
and are determined with reference to the prevailing market
conditions. Sale of properties are normally completed upon
the execution of legally binding, unconditional and irrevocable
contracts and the sale prices are usually fully paid when the
properties are assigned to the purchasers. Deferred payment
terms are sometimes offered to purchasers at a premium.
Property rentals are payable in advance. Payments for club
and hotel services are due on demand. The general credit
terms allowed for customers of manufactured goods range
from 30 to 90 days.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables at the
reporting date:

r&EHE

THE GROUP
2003 2002
E&EET A&ET
HKS'M HK$'M
95.5 589.9
27.2 29.8
5.0 2.7
7.6 8.4
135.3 630.8
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27.

ERESERER  BRERETER
FEH B SRR M ERT B AR BT R FE
B5ER141.98 88T (TS _F -
138.9F B T) - HIERER OO T ¢

For the year ended 31 March 2003

27. Trade Payables, Provision and Accrued Charges
Included in trade payables, provision and accrued charges
are trade payables of HK$141.9 million (2002: HK$138.9
million), an aged analysis of which is as follows:

AEE
THE GROUP

2003 2002

BEET BEET

HKS’'M HK$’'M

R 5 ER Not yet due 110.2 96.2
wH] Overdue:

0 — 60X 0 - 60 days 20.4 29.3

61 — 90K 61 - 90 days 1.2 6.3

HB#EI0K Over 90 days 10.1 7.1

141.9 138.9

ERNEZENR  BEREFSEREE
ERE TREREME 2 ##356.48
SEET(ZEE_F : 356.588 %
7o) o AEBETYHEEREB AR
b ERBEHERILEZERES
g REEBEBEANHERZETAHIA
R o Hit - ARECRAIEILIE
AEZBELNBE 2R ?f%Z
LRENARE - WIARE
SEHIWNT :

The trade payables, provision and accrued charges has
included provisions for certain construction obligations of
HK$356.4 million (2002: HK$356.5 million). In the course
of the property development activities, the Group is obliged
to construct certain common or public facilities within the
development projects in accordance with the development
plans approved by relevant authorities. Provision for such
construction costs has been made when a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of this obligation and the details
of the movement of the provision are set out below.

B&EET

HK$'M

R-ZEZ-_FPMA—HBH 248 Balance at 1 April 2002 356.5
FABA Utilised during the year (0.1)
R-ZEE=F=H Balance at 31 March 2003 356.4
=t+—Hz&H% -
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B2 —LFELE-—F=-H=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2003
28. B 28. Share Capital
—ET=FR=FF=
2003 & 2002
K8 E
Number B&EET
of shares HK$'M
SRR Authorised:
FREEC.25E L ERR Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each 2,000,000,000 500.0
BEREITRERRAE Issued and fully paid:
FREE0.25F L R Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each 1,157,378,029 289.3
29. RRAETE 29. Share Option Schemes

ARRBERERA —HR RS (R =
ZZ_FRMUBRKR - AEFR
W28 ZATEITAARRERER
FTARRE - EMBAR R REEE
RAEAIZEE  2BEERERAIRE
RRRAD 2 B © RN Q B I AR
R UL R B B AT R A -

RIBAR AR & (R —NNNF
R AATEERSREREAER
hZ AT REA R B I < RE (BEE
—EE_FRARMARNDALER B
SIS

g H T

Date of grant Exercise period

— Nt —ANANERATNABE
AATRH —ZET-FRATNH

19 May 1997 19 May 1998 to 18 May 2002

“AhEE  —AANERA-t-AE

AA-+—H —EE-FRA-1H
21 May 1997 21 May 1998 to 20 May 2002

ERABRESHAZRBERR

The Company currently has a share option scheme (adopted
in 2002 to replace the scheme adopted in 1997) which
permits the directors of the Company to grant options to
directors, full-time employees and consultants of the
Company, its subsidiaries and/or its associated companies
to subscribe for shares in the Company. No options have yet
been granted under this scheme.

Details of options (which remain valid until their expiry dates
in May 2002) granted by the Company under the share option
scheme (adopted in 1989) to the executive directors and
senior executives to subscribe for shares in the Company
were as follows:

Details of the share options held by directors included

in the above table

ARERMHAR
Number of option shares

R=-BE—F R=-BE-F

B—H W =A=t+-—H

e RATHE KX i RATHE

TEE outstanding lapsed outstanding

Exercise at during at

price 1 April 2001 the year 31 March 2002
BT
HK$

7.38 5,500,000 — 5,500,000

7.59 3,410,000 (110,000) 3,300,000

8,910,000 (110,000) 8,800,000

6,600,000 — 6,600,000
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29. RAREE -E

For the year ended 31 March 2003

29. Share Option Schemes — continued

RRERDHE
Number of option shares
R-BE-& R-ZEE2=F
mA—H FR =A=+-H
e RAT 6L P e RAT6E
THEE outstanding lapsed outstanding
R H TEH Exercise at during at
Date of grant Exercise period price 1 April 2002 the year 31 March 2003
BT
HK$
—hWh+E —“WANERA+HARZE
"A+AHA —ZET-FRATNH
19 May 1997 19 May 1998 to 18 May 2002 7.38 5,500,000 (5,500,000) —
— ANt —“WANERA=ZT—HBZE
hAAZ+—H —TE-FRAZTH
21 May 1997 21 May 1998 to 20 May 2002 7.59 3,300,000 (3,300,000) —
8,800,000 (8,800,000) —
FRABEESHAZRREFNE
Details of the share options held by directors
included in the above table 6,600,000 (6,600,000) —

RRE—RAREL —FRERAFH
[ERmABTITEE - REZUFEHA » S5
BREBANITE25%RRIESILZTF
10% — 40%iE3E 5 ATfE -

FARBEER-_TE-FT AR
B SR«

The options are generally exercisable after one year, but
before the expiration of five years after the options are
granted, and can be exercised either on a linear scale of
25% per year or on an ascending scale of 10% - 40% per
year over the four years’ period.

All the share options were lapsed upon their expiry dates in
May 2002.
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B2 —LFELE-—F=-H=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2003
30. f#fE 30. Reserves
rEE THE GROUP
NEEFEEZBFRNESOB RS Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in
EmBEmE - the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
59.
AEBEBEE T =FR_ZTFT_F The accumulated profits of the Group as at 31 March 2003
A=+ —RAZEFHEFEEULTA and 2002 include the following accumulated losses retained
AR Z 25T EE ¢ by:
rEE
THE GROUP
2003 2002
B&EETT B&EET
HKS'M HK$'M
iR/ Associates 1,964.9 1,201.4
SN Jointly controlled entities 28.5 17.0
1,993.4 1,218.4
ER
e B
B2iER B EHE Capital
Accumulated Share redemption @t
profits premium reserve Total
BE#T BEBT B&EET B&EET
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
AT THE COMPANY
RZZE—F Balance at 1 April 2001 1,652.5 866.7 3.1 2,522.3
MA—BZ#&717F
REFEH Net profit for the year 40.1 — — 40.1
% B Dividends (201.3) — — (201.3)
RZEETF Balance at 31 March 2002 1,491.3 866.7 3.1 2,361.1
=RA=+—H and 1 April 2002
N_ZTE_F
WMA—Bz#&iF
REREFER Net loss for the year (861.3) — — (861.3)
WNZZEZE=%=H Balance at
=+—HZ#7 31 March 2003 630.0 866.7 3.1 1,499.8
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30. #E— &

30.

RERASHEZARZEE T8 (&
{EET) » NREZ BN E E R KR A A
MAEERE XM AFERERET
BRR - BB SAERRIRER R
BANBEAEIER 28 FAEEERE - K
RARRZARMEBERMRZ R

EE I (1 A

DK e

31. RITEE

RITEMR

B BERRE
BEHBEET
—FRAE

RITEFRAR
THIHREE -

BNEAsk —F A
—FREMFNA

MERERFNA
TR

SRR
iR

o REBERAIRARFN-_ZEZE=F
A=+—HZZ25a5630.08&8%
(ZZEZE_F 149130 887T)

31.

Bank loans

Less: Amount due within
one year included
under current
liabilities

Amount due
after one year

Bank loans are repayable:

On demand or within

one year
Between one to two years
Between two to five years
After five years

Secured
Unsecured

For the year ended 31 March 2003

Reserves — continued

Under the Company Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for
distribution or paying dividends to shareholders subject to
the provisions of its Memorandum or Articles of Association
and provided that immediately following the distribution of
dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business. In accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association, dividends can only
be distributed out of the accumulated profits of the Company
of HK$630.0 million as at 31 March 2003 (2002:
HK$1,491.3 million).

Bank Loans
KEE AATF

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2003 2002 2003 2002
BEET BEXT BEET BEXT
HKS’'M HK$'M HKS'M HK$'M
3,172.6 2,512.5 2,750.0 1,985.0
(433.6) (207.3) (200.0) —
2,739.0 2,305.2 2,550.0 1,985.0
433.6 207.3 200.0 —
276.5 1,150.9 100.0 1,000.0
2,453.6 1,144.2 2,450.0 985.0
8.9 10.1 —_ —
3,172.6 2,512.5 2,750.0 1,985.0
410.3 527.5 —_ —
2,762.3 1,985.0 2,750.0 1,985.0
3,172.6 2,512.5 2,750.0 1,985.0
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Htt&E

DEIR 2 B (M)
SFfES
BEMNEL

—FRBIBMEERE 2 R

fifet

BERRBEEERBF

—FREHEEZFKIE

ZEFEAETHBARZ DEEK
RETRBEZER - ARWBARZ
B BYEETERSR NEE
CRERRPE-SFAETST
TETE ZRIEL,104. 5&%/%75(7
LT —F : 1,563.288870)

Hm

HRBHAREE -
BEEZRR ZEBRTER—FR
BE  HREEABERANIIBIER

HaE-

For the year ended 31 March 2003

32. Other Liabilities

Advances from minority shareholders (Note)
Club debentures

Obligations under finance leases

Less: Amount due within one year included
under current liabilities

Amount due after one year

ZN- .

THE GROUP
2003 2002
E&EET A&ET
HKS'M HK$'M
1,104.5 1,565.3
809.3 801.5
21 1.1
1,915.9 2,367.9
(1.4) (0.4)
1,914.5 2,367.5

Note: The amounts represent advances from minority shareholders

of certain subsidiaries to finance operations of these
subsidiaries. There is no fixed repayment term. Advances
amounting to HK$1,104.5 million (2002: HK$1,563.2 million)
as at the balance sheet date bears interest at market rate.
The remaining balance of the advances is non-interest

bearing.

In the opinion of the directors, the advances are unlikely to
be repaid within one year and are therefore shown in the
balance sheet as non-current liabilities.
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BE—_LTLE=—F=-H=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2003
32. HthEE & 32. Other Liabilities — continued
SHESN NHIHRERD Club debentures are redeemable:
REH
THE GROUP

2003 2002

BEE®ET BEET

HKS’'M HK$'M

—ETLF In 2007 4.1 —

—EENFEZTF Between 2008 and 2020 101.8 105.9

RZZTMEF In 2047 703.4 695.6

809.3 801.5
WEEHFH AR S RERMT - WEETT These debentures are non-interest bearing, unsecured and
FTTRIRAEEEE M8 are issued to members of the following clubs operated by

the Group:
KEH
THE GROUP

2003 2002

HBEETT BEET

HKS'M HK$’'M

BEESRAIRE Discovery Bay Golf Club 616.3 616.3

MEEERE Discovery Bay Marina Club 67.8 67.8

R ERYEE Discovery Bay Residents Club 125.2 117.4

809.3 801.5
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

32. HthEaE &

32. Other Liabilities — continued
MEMLYHEL

Obligations under finance leases:

AEH

THE GROUP
REEONRZRE

Present value of

BREBEHAR
Minimum

lease payments

2003

minimum lease payments

2002 2003 2002
HBEETT BEET HBEETT BEET
HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M HK$'M
RERERL Amounts payable under
e &% finance leases:
—FR Within one year 1.5 0.5 1.4 0.4
ME-_ZFEFHEN  Inthe second to fifth years
inclusive 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.7
2.3 1.3 2.1 1.1
B SR ELEE M Less: Future finance charges (0.2) (0.2)
HOETZIRE Present value of lease
obligations 2.1 1.1
B —F R E S Less: Amount due for
BgZ5IE settlement within
(BIERED one year (shown
afE) under current
liabilities) (1.4) (0.4)
—FIRE|IHEE Amount due for settlement after
28

one year

0.7

0.7
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BE—_LTLE=—F=-H=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2003
33. EZERHIE 33. Deferred Taxation
KEH
THE GROUP
2003 2002
HEETT BEET
HKS'M HK$’'M
FVHEF Balance at the beginning of the year 34.3 34.3
BEE w2 (i1 Effect on change in tax rate (note 11) 3.2 —
FREET Balance at the end of the year 37.5 34.3
R IBBERGEEH 2 HKBIE The components of the provision for deferred taxation at
T&IE: the balance sheet date are as follows:
KEH
THE GROUP
2003 2002
HEETT BEET
HKS'M HK$'M
REEEMSIESC Tax effect of timing differences attributable to:
BETEZ HRAER
BB E R EBEBETA Excess of depreciation allowances for tax
T mER2ITE purposes over depreciation charged in the
financial statements 37.5 34.3
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33. EERE &
REER  RELEWBHRERFIELE
Bz AEREEELEHIBEEZ 2R
EHRETE

For the year ended 31 March 2003

33. Deferred Taxation — continued

At the balance sheet date, the components of the cumulative
balance of the unrecognised potential deferred taxation
assets not provided for in the financial statements are as

follows:
KEH
THE GROUP
2003 2002
HEETT BEET
HKS'M HK$'M
EE R ZIERTSI B2 Tax effect of timing differences attributable to:
HETE HRAA:
MIBTERFEBEET A Difference between depreciation allowances for
TR ITE 2 E5 tax purposes over depreciation charged in the
financial statements 4.0 (22.0)
REAZRIBEEGEE Unutilised tax losses carried forward 245.4 222.3
249.4 200.3

M B EER < BIERAEEY B
M mRARER  REREHN@EL T
BEEENABERZARRERE -

BN EMR BB E YR RF
BEOBENERBFREMEL 2R
MEBHH  ARREEESHME
EZEEREKE TR AHREANEZK
MERE  RUERZFEELERR
BHIE TR TR -

o EERRAKEEETRAER
ZARBEREMBEENERKREY
X BAKBYERZENEEES
H BRI DR A -

It is uncertain that the benefits of these taxation losses will
be realised in the foreseeable future. The deferred tax asset
relating thereto accordingly has not been recognised in the
financial statements.

Deferred taxation has not been provided on the revaluation
surplus arising from the valuation of its hotel properties and
investment properties situated in Hong Kong and Singapore
and investments in securities as profits arising on the
disposal of these assets would not be subject to taxation.
Accordingly, the valuation surplus does not constitute a timing
difference for taxation purposes.

In addition, in the opinion of the directors, the Group has no
intention of disposing of its other hotel properties and
investment properties in the foreseeable future. Accordingly,
deferred taxation has not been provided on the revaluation
surplus of these Group’s property interests.
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

34. HEMBAR DIFEBAIZE 34. Disposal of Subsidiaries/Spin-Off of HCHL

REBE_ZTZ=F=-A=+—HILF
g - A& B H % Sental Investment
Limited ([Sental]) * Wisdom Concept
Development Limited ([Wisdom
Conceptl) X Amwell Investments
Limited ([Amwelll) F#B5aI -
Sental &2 Wisdom Conceptitt =4 % 2
& - mAmwel B 28 EZER AT o 1
EWm2.8EEBTE THR -

B2 R)) 2 5% A #E 2 B 20 4 I AE Bk
RATERLET - IR ZH BB
FREAREER

During the year ended 31 March 2003, the Group disposed
of Sental Investment Limited (“Sental”), Wisdom Concept
Development Limited (“Wisdom Concept”) and Amwell
Investments Limited (“Amwell”) to HCHL. Sental and Wisdom
Concept were engaged in property development, while Amwell
was an investment holding company. A gain on disposal of
HK$2.8 million was recognised.

During the year ended 31 March 2002, a 51% equity interest
in a group of companies comprising HCHL and certain
subsidiaries, of which the Company is the ultimate holding
company, has been spun-off to be separately listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The spun-off subsidiaries were engaged in construction
related business.
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

34. HEWBAR DIFEBAIE &
R-ZZE=_FHEMNBARI T
—EoREBREZEZERIINT

34. Disposal of Subsidiaries/Spin-Off of HCHL — continued
A summary of the effect of disposals of subsidiaries in 2003
and the spin-off of HCHL in 2002 is as follows:

2003 2002
BEEET B&EET
HKS'M HK$'M
HE S (BE)BEES - Net (liabilities) assets disposed of/spun-off:
A Investment property — 1.2
BEREPYE Property under development 164.6 —
Y - BB REE Property, plant and equipment — 44.8
/N I s Interest in associates — 3.0
TE Inventories — 27.0
BHTE Investment in securities — 0.1
EHTIR 2 EWFIA Amounts receivable on contract work — 6.2
E%&ﬁfﬂﬁ”&mlﬁ Trade and other receivables — 207.9
RITHEHBREIAS Bank balances and cash — 390.3
AH TRz EMNFIE Amounts payable on contract work — (185.3)
ERESEDR - clizs Trade payables, deposits received and accrued
Mgt E R charges — (169.8)
SEANED Intra-group debt (229.2) —
(64.6) 325.4
EiEmE Attributable goodwill — 0.7
BEREBBENF ES Interest in associates retained — (159.5)
EEEB NG Assignment of intra-group debt 164.7 —
e EBNER Waiver of intra-group debt 64.5 —
515“ % &N 7] FE A i F) Unrealised profit attributable to an associate 2.6 —
167.2 166.6
& TSl s Gain on disposal 2.8 —
MRIE Total consideration 170.0 166.6
HEA Satisfied by:
ReRE Cash consideration 170.0 —
IR F B AIZR MDA EA S Dividend in specie of HCHL shares — 166.6
— 166.6
HE/ DIREEZRS Net cash inflow (outflow) arising on
mA R F58 disposal/spin-off:
IERIR 2 (B Cash consideration received 170.0 —
HERTEBR LIRS Bank balances and cash disposed of — (390.3)
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34. HEWEAR 2RABAR &
RRE-FF=F=A=+—ALT
€ EREREATEARE LS
HEREBEF 2 AT TEK -

REE-ZTEE-_F=-A=+—HILF
ENiFcMBRARYHAREE 2 &%
Fe4.7TEBETZER HAKHEZ
EERFAIE18.8A BB LEIE

35. WEEHIB Al
R_ZZ=F—A+=8 ~EEK
BEHMC, Inc.z 28 #Exw - BREA
26.2B8EIT c ZERXHEHANE
FEETIER o

For the year ended 31 March 2003

34.

35.

Disposal of Subsidiaries/Spin-Off of HCHL — continued
The subsidiaries disposed of during the year ended 31 March
2003 contributed insignificant turnover and profit from
operations to the Group.

The subsidiaries spun-off during the year ended 31 March
2002 contributed HK$64.7 million to the Group’s turnover
and a loss of HK$18.8 million to the Group’s profit from
operations.

Acquisition of Subsidiaries

On 13 January 2003, the Group acquired 100% of the issued
share capital of HMC, Inc. for a total consideration of
HK$26.2 million. The transaction was accounted for by the
acquisition method of accounting.

2003 2002
BEBT B&EET
HKS'M HK$'M
W s & EEF AR Net assets acquired:
W BENEE Property, plant and equipment 19.1 —
B 5 & H Ath U IR Trade and other receivables 10.6 —
WITEB MRS Bank balances and cash 0.9 —
BREZER  sliZe Trade payables, deposits received
RIEFER and accruals (6.1) —
BEREER Shareholder’s loan (4.2) —
20.3 —
EERRER Assignment of shareholder’s loan 4.2 —
R EE 2 e Goodwill on acquisition 1.7 —
26.2 —
LATAN G A Satisfied by:
ReRE Cash consideration 26.2 —
Y FTE £ 235 €m HF 5 © Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
ReRE Cash consideration 26.2 —
Frii i 2 IR1THEB IR S Bank balances and cash acquired (0.9) —
25.3 —

BlEHRB AR AEE EEER
gaERNoRlAE6.6RAEBITNO.6R
EBTZEE -

The acquired subsidiary contributed HK$6.6 million to the

Group’s turnover and HK$0.6 million to the Group’s profit

from operations.
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35.

37.

RekASESEEBEFIM

RITHEBERE

RZEZ=F=A=+—H  R174
BHERESBIE—THAEL1,664.088
BIL(ZEE-F 11,1782 8% D)
R={EARNEIHZEITFR -

BEEER
R-ZEE=F=A=+—H

AEE DL ERME £696.3B 8T
(ZZEZ=F 16304888 TT) 2ET
M RILABBET(ZTET_F :
44 9\ BB TT) ZIRITIFE R T AR -
NEARTFAEERITEEZEIR

R B & H 2 A RITCSDCLZ B & 1R A
1 REEREIWTCSDCLZ BN — Y&
WF S NBRBHERD & 5142,258.48 8
BT (ZEEF : 2,965.5888) 2
{EREIRTE THR1T - {E/RTCSDCLERTFER
TEEZER -

BEABEEWE)BRAR (RAREAF
—XKMBRAE) TS —RKERKEBA
AFTR18.6EEB L (ZTET_F -
16.95 B 7T) 2 A aMEBEIERER
& EAZRRMBRARNE — KR
TEEZER -

HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd (Ax/A &) E A
—RWBAE) BB KB AR
R131.5B8BT(ZEE_F
120.98 B4 7T) 2 A rIEEEERE
RE - 1EBZMEB R REE —MRIBIT
EEZER -

For the year ended 31 March 2003

36.

Bank balances and cash

37.

Analysis of the Balances of Cash and Cash Equivalents

2003 2002
E&EET B&ET
HKS'M HK$'M
1,670.0 1,180.4

Included in the bank balances and cash at 31 March 2003
were bank deposits with maturity within 3 months amounting
to approximately HK$1,664.0 million (2002: HK$1,178.2
million).

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2003

The Group had pledged certain properties with a carrying
value of HK$696.3 million (2002: HK$630.4 million) and
bank deposits of HK$91.1 million (2002: HK$44.9 million)
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group.

The Group’s investment in an associate, TCSDCL was
pledged, and the loan to TCSDCL, together with all interest
accrued thereon if appropriate, (before provision) amounting
to approximately HK$2,258.4 million (2002: HK$2,965.5
million) are subordinated to banks to secure the banking
facilities granted to TCSDCL.

HKR Properties Limited, one of the Company’s subsidiaries,
was also subordinated an intercompany debt due from one
of its fellow subsidiaries of HK$18.6 million (2002: HK$16.9
million) to secure certain general banking facilities granted
to that fellow subsidiary.

HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd, one of the Company’s subsidiaries,
was also subordinated an intercompany debt due from one
of its subsidiaries of HK$131.5 million (2002: HK$120.9
million) to secure certain general banking facilities granted
to that subsidiary.
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37. EEEA & 37. Pledge of Assets — continued

R=ZBZ2-F=A=+—-H
FREER263.7A BB T EFRATN
TLAER - DUERA KBRS — IR
TEEZER-

AEBEEFE X E A FAlderney
Investments Pte Ltd ([Alderney]) %5
IR TRIT - LEZXEBRERATRE
|ITEE -

HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd7ii5 A
AlderneyS —lRER A=A Z BIXET
150 - #EAlderneyFT/R 2 149.58 &%
TTRREFIERIFR - U RETT
RI5 RS K AR B 1 s 5 R IR R 2 B
BEBREME -

P EEEARARRBEEZRER
FERBE_TZE=F=R=
IEF AR o

As at 31 March 2002

The Group had also pledged investments in securities with
a carrying value of HK$263.7 million to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group.

The Group has pledged its shares in a former investee
company, Alderney Investments Pte Ltd (“Alderney”), to a
bank for a loan facility granted to the investee company.

HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd had also created a charge of an
intercompany loan due from Alderney of HK$149.5 million
by way of first fixed charge in favour of the other shareholder
of Alderney for the payment and discharge of all of the
indebtedness and obligations owing to that shareholder
pursuant to the subscription and shareholders agreement.

The above pledge of assets and subordination of
intercompany debts were released during the year ended
31 March 2003.
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38. HAREE

=N IIVNCIIEE]
RITREMBEE
(KB ERE
pE ) miEh 2
ERAKREE
PR DI BIR)

— WEAR
— —REEAF
— (BRERER)
(B 35)

For the year ended 31 March 2003

38. Contingent Liabilities

rEE ARTH
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2003 2002 2003 2002
BEEETT B&EET BEEETT BEET
HKS$'M HK$'M HKS$’'M HK$'M
Guarantees given, to the
extent of the Group’s
proportionate share,
in respect of banking
and other facilities (or
secured indebtedness, if
appropriate) granted to:
— subsidiaries — — 329.4 323.9
— an associate
— (secured
indebtedness)
(Note) 1,046.1 946.9 1,046.1 946.9
— investee companies 105.3 720.4 105.3 720.4
1,151.4 1,667.3 1,480.8 1,991.2

Miat - ANEE L R HABTCSDCLY & & B
(GRBERAD) CEERITE B — 8
B M R ER) 2 # %  BHETCSDCLA
HAOEAB T (ZEZTZF : 4085
J0) ZBE - LAMB{ETCSDCLE IR A
(i@ ) BATIRIR B 38 A R A RlE
B2 B R et 2 BT R SEA BB b
EE_HMERREER o

Note: The Group, together with other joint venture partners of
TCSDCL (collectively the “Guarantors”), has executed a joint
and several undertaking in favour of banks providing finance
to TCSDCL amounting to HK$4 billion (2002: HK$4 billion)
to procure that TCSDCL or the Guarantors, as appropriate,
will perform and observe obligations under the development
agreement with MTR Corporation Limited and to achieve
completion of the Tung Chung Station Development Package
Il project.

HKR INTERNATIONAL LIMITED | ANNUAL REPORT 2002/2003 123



Bt %5 8 oAk MY A

Notes to the Financial Statements

BLZEEEE (W1 ztien =
EE=F=ZA=+—HZARHBBOH A
642.8AE BT - AT A LSIIER R
AT EREE - AEBAER
FEMBEERAEERE 2GRS
HERIEE  EEMAERER 2K
R(TEELRBBRKAR) B ARE
3,174.28 87T (18£102,996.48 &8
TT) e

REANBERLEEANZ B A&

o

B
ul

BE—_LTLE=—F=-H=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2003
39. EXREKIE 39. Capital Commitments
rEE
THE GROUP
2003 2002
HEETT BEET
HKS'M HK$'M
TRRERKARN 2 ERHEIE Capital commitments in respect of project
development costs:
BB RE T EE Contracted for but not provided 973.4 386.5
BHLEBEREY Authorised but not contracted for 63.6 4445
1,037.0 831.0
ERBEEYME  HE KK Capital commitments in respect of acquisition
LB of property, plant and equipment:
BELERE T ER Contracted for but not provided 51.3 34.9
BHUEEREL Authorised but not contracted for 8.3 5.4
59.6 40.3
1,096.6 871.3

The unpaid installments of land cost of HK$642.8 million
as at 31 March 2003 in respect of the Jingan redevelopment
project (see note 17) is included in the contracted for capital
commitments in respect of project development costs above.
The Group intends to invite additional investors to participate
in the redevelopment project on terms that are satisfactory
to the Group and the directors have estimated that total
cost (excluding land and related cost) for the redevelopment
project amounting to RMB3,174.2 million (equivalent to
HK$2,996.4 million).

The Company has no significant capital commitments at the
balance sheet date.
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40. HERH
FEBRAQXAEREEA
REER  AEERELHRET 2
AR E RELAOMAR A THBX
M2 RARKREBRBONFAE RN
T

R—F AR Within one year

RE_EZFRF In the second to fifth year
M ER inclusive

RAFE W Over five years

EEBOBLDARERLHAE
$RETIEEMEMZAS - BOT
YIIATRAF B R ATRERS - — AR SR -
—FRH ST -

AN - REBEBETHRR —RBERT
2t HEEASETF = =T+
FZAEW - BEAEZNAS AN3EE
BITSBEEBKE S U esE A
) o

For the year ended 31 March 2003

40. Leasing Arrangements

The Group and the Company as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for
future minimum lease payment under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of land and buildings which fall
due as follows:

EN L ENNS

THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2003 2002 2003 2002
HEET B2EET BEEET B 2B
HK$'M HK$'M HKS'M HK$'M

6.1 4.3 0.6 1.1

11.1 7.6 - —

30.7 33.7 — —

47.9 45.6 0.6 1.1

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises and staff quarters. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of two years and rentals are
fixed for an average term of one year.

In addition, the Group is committed to leasing land where a
hotel is situated for 86 years up to February 2074. The
annual lease payment is at the higher of approximately HK$3
million or 5% of the total gross revenue of the hotel.
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40. HEZRHE -8

For the year ended 31 March 2003

40. Leasing Arrangements — continued

41.

AEEEAATERAERAA
BEMEREMYERFARRZY
X¥BeWAEER221 268 T (=
TT-F : 200.3HBET)  BEA
EEEEWERINZ213.288H T
(CZZT—F 192 2H8ETT) ° N
HH - REEH*E2,290.5888 T
(CEE-F 2325 7TAEBT)ZY
(¥R ERERAR - AFEANB#AZ
EYEZWEI L A22E8E L (=
TE-F I 22B8BL) c IBEY
¥HEAM e —ERFTE -
REEH  AEBEAETHEFETL -
AT ARERBETIHHCERLD
MAXNZ&EREERE@EHEE ZE
HfTA -

The Group and the Company as lessor

Property rental income earned from investment properties
and other properties during the year was in aggregate
HK$221.2 million (2002: HK$200.3 million), of which
HK$213.2 million (2002: HK$192.2 million) was generated
from investment properties of the Group. Properties with an
aggregate net book value of HK$2,290.5 million (2002:
HK$2,325.7 million) were held for rental purposes as at
balance sheet date. Depreciation charged for the year in
respect of these properties was HK$2.2 million (2002:
HK$2.2 million). The properties held have committed tenants
for a period from one to five years. At the balance sheet
date, the Group had contracted with tenants for the following
future minimum leases payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

2003 2002

BEET BEET

HKS'M HK$'M

R—FREH Within one year 136.5 136.0
RE_EERFRER In the second to fifth year inclusive 137.6 143.9
RAFE W Over five years — 6.1
274.1 286.0

EARERGE

A. BE
REBEREBRBEBFERKGENR
BIFEMBK 7 2 FE g sRET & (5%
FRWGHE) - WEREREIME
NIEBFTENEG ([RES GG
ZEHBIRE °

REEBRBESHE - AEELE
EAVASEE /Gt [N ke
(22 atE]) - BB
R-ZEZEZEF+_A—BAER
% MABEENUASMBESD

B

41. Retirement Benefits Schemes

A. HONG KONG
The Group has maintained a defined contribution
scheme registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (ORSO Scheme) and has obtained
an exemption satisfying the requirements of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance (MPFO).

In order to comply with MPFO, a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) with voluntary
contributions has been established. New employees
must join the MPF Scheme after commenced on 1
December 2000.
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41. RUKBRETE B

A.

5B

UIMARK RBRTESFT &I 2K E Z
BEME @ AEEJHZTERA
ZB%EL10%EIET B - M AT
R B R 8 Pt IRA T -

BEERATEIZCESKARER
AEEETIREBELRH S 25%
£15% (RN IRFF M E) FrE
28 RMK -

EWERAFTAZEEAREE
BIEZ S R EMARN 2
HR18.8FEB L (2T =
F:242858%L) WRKET
EREBRISHURTREFAAEE
Fg B2 FH1.08 88T
(BT -F 211588 7T) °

REER - ABE ITEMAZEERIR
TR T8I PR U 2 3R ARER
AR REVE 2 E KR 200.1
BAEAT(ZEE-F 0288
HBIT) o

B RS

AEEHBENEIMES RHIER
AAEREE 2T BFEELZ
BERAKBHNGTEIZKE - N&E
BRI T ERARZIEEB LS
BRI EIHRIERB BB S
ZE® - Bt FAEIME - A%
B2 ME—EERFHARE 2K

Eon
NI

LN EERIEERE 25 EIR
BERINBZEBRAEL5.38
EBT(CTE_F 44088
TT) °

For the year ended 31 March 2003

41. Retirement Benefits Schemes — continued
A. HONG KONG - continued

For the members of the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributes 5% to 10% of the relevant payroll costs to
the Scheme, which contribution is matched by the

employee.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions
from both employees and the Group at rates ranging
from 5% to 15% of the employee’s basic salary,
depending on the length of the service with the Group.

The amount charged to the income statement
represents contributions payable of HK$18.8 million
(2002: HK$24.2 million) to the schemes by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the schemes less
forfeitures of HK$1.0 million (2002: HK$2.1 million)
arising from employees leaving the Group prior to

completion of the qualifying service period.

At the balance sheet date, the total amount of forfeited
contributions, which arose upon employees leaving the
retirement benefits schemes and which are available
to reduce the contributions payable in future years is

HK$0.1 million (2002: HK$0.2 million).

B. PRC AND OVERSEAS

The employees of the Group in the PRC and overseas
are members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the respective local governments
in relevant jurisdictions. The Group is required to
contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to
the schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to these schemes is to make

the specified contributions.

The total cost charged to the income statement in
respect of the above-mentioned schemes in the relevant
jurisdictions amounted to approximately HK$5.3 million

(2002: HK$4.4 million).
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Controlled Entities

42. Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and Jointly

BAEMKZEEEZ TRMBR
AFABERNT

AR

Name of company

BREBERBAR DA
Discovery Bay Commercial
Services Limited

MEEBRMREERA R
Discovery Bay Communication
Services Limited

Discovery Bay Enterprises Limited

REVBEREBERA

Discovery Bay Financial
Services Limited

MEEERARERRAA
Discovery Bay Golf Club Limited

mREEREEERA
Discovery Bay Marlna
Club Limited

Discovery Bay Properties Limited

MRERLEERAT
Discovery Bay Residents
Club Limited

mRERBEERA
Discovery Bay Road Tunnel
Company Limited

(a) Details of principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2003,
all of which are incorporated and have their principal
place of operation in Hong Kong, are as follows:

rEEFE
ERITEER
% A E B 2 t A
ERITEER Proportion of
KA ZEE nominal value
Nominal value of issued
of issued ordinary share
ordinary capital held FEEK
share capital by the Group Principal activities
BT =N
HK$ %
2 50%* MEME
Property leasing
2 50% R 2 AMEAN

Lessee of communication

network
400,000 50* —EMIE T2 BT EA

Leaseholder of a shipyard

land
2 50%* mERE—FEX
?ET/\/jj‘ﬁ%ﬂEi%

Provision of financial
services to first hand
purchasers of properties
in Discovery Bay

2 50* ?IET/\EIFﬁ’F\X}j&

Provision of club facilities

Provision of club facilities
2 50%* EEEERS

Group promotion services
2 50* RHEFMRE

Provision of club facilities
2 50% BraE s

Road tunnel operation
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42.

TEMBLR BERRARSE

A&
R-ZFZ=F=ZA=+—REZF

(@)

BRI REE EEHBA
AIFFABANT - — &

ACEE:

Name of company

MEEREEREBR AR
Discovery Bay Services
Management Limited

BREZBREERA
Discovery Bay Transit
Services Limited

MREMERBERRAF
Discovery Bay Transportation
Services Limited

RIBRBR A A

Fame Wood Limited

wBERBRAF]

Frosmate Company Limited

FIMERRAR]

General Target Limited

BEREARAT

Grace Investment Limited

KBER DT
Greenyield Limited

FEEREARAT

Hagent Investment Limited

EBEE(WE)BRAA
HKR Properties Limited

En

For the year ended 31 March 2003

42. Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and Jointly
Controlled Entities — continued

(a)

DRITEER
ARz EE
Nominal value
of issued
ordinary
share capital
/"57‘5

HK$

2

10,000

1,000

Details of principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2003,

all of which are incorporated and have their principal

place of operation in Hong Kong, are as follows: —

continued

rEERE
ERITEER
B% 25 TE B 2 e 4l
Proportion of
nominal value
of issued
ordinary share
capital held
by the Group
B
%

50%*

50*

50*
100
100
100
100
100
100
100

FTEEYR

Principal activities

MEER

Estate management

RMEE RS

Provision of bus services

e i & M BR 75

Provision of ferry services

MERE

Property investment

REER
Investment holding

MEHE
Property leasing

MERE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

MERE

Property investment

REER R R
Investment holding and
property development
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

42. FEMBAT BHEQATRAERD 42. Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and Jointly
7 — & Controlled Entities — continued
(a) RZZEZE=F=-A=1+—HESF (a)
BaMRIEEEZEEWBR
RIFFMEB RN « — &

Details of principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2003,
all of which are incorporated and have their principal
place of operation in Hong Kong, are as follows: —

continued
rEERE
ERTERAR
R A TE B 2t
ERITEER Proportion of
Bz EHE nominal value
Nominal value of issued
of issued ordinary share
ARER ordinary capital held FEEK
Name of company share capital by the Group Principal activities
BT Bk
HK$ %
Hong Kong Health Resort Limited 4 100 MR E
Property investment
EEHEEBR AR 1** 50% MEZRIREER
Hong Kong Resort Company Limited Property development and
investment holding
BN FR AR 2 100 BREER
Jumbo Profits Limited Investment holding
MEBESBR AR 2,000,000 99.99 YR
Lam Island Development Property development
Company Limited
FIAB R A F 300,000 100 MERE
Lee Wo Company, Limited Property investment
Parocka Investments Limited 20 100 R
Property development
BEERERAQF 2 100 MERE
Pearl Development Limited Property investment
HEIFER QA 2 100 KEER
Perfect Landmark Limited Investment holding
Qualigenics Medical Limited 3,000 80 W PR R e R A 2k 3R
TRAE B R P B

Clinic operator in diabetes
and endocrine disorders
diseases
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

42, FEMBAT BHEQATRAERD 42. Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and Jointly
7 — & Controlled Entities — continued
(@) R-ZE=F=-A=+—HEHF (a)
BRI REE EEWBA
AIFFABANT - — &

Details of principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2003,
all of which are incorporated and have their principal
place of operation in Hong Kong, are as follows: —

continued
rEERE
ERTERAR
R A TE B 2t
ERITEER Proportion of
Bz EHE nominal value
Nominal value of issued
of issued ordinary share
ARER ordinary capital held FEEK
Name of company share capital by the Group Principal activities
BT Bk
HK$ %
SREBRAF 2 100 MERE
Quebostage Limited Property investment
Questor Holdings Limited 20 100 MERE
Property investment
H&EBRAT 2 100 REER
Rich Deal Limited Investment holding
MREEREBRAA 2 100 BREER
Royston Investment Limited Investment holding
FFIREBRARA] 2 100 REER
Solar High-tech Company Limited Investment holding
TCS Project Management Limited 2 100 MEZFRIBEAERE
Property development
project management
IR ERGER DA 100,000 100 B E R
Wells Estate Services Limited Estate management
IRV EEBRERAE 1,000 100 EiERE
Wells Property Management Limited Estate management
ENMEETIRRBRAA 2 100 MR E R

Yintaly Construction Company Limited

Property investment and
finance
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For the year ended 31 March 2003

42. T ERBLAT  HEQATAREED 42. Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and Jointly
7 — & Controlled Entities — continued

(@) RZZEZE=F=A=+—HED (a) Details of principal subsidiaries as at 31 March 2003,

BRI REE EEHBA all of which are incorporated and have their principal

AREERMT - &

REFFEXERAR ([FEEE])
BRER ek - ASEE R AR BB M
LEMBRAREERBEBRYHMZRE
% -

AREE B 100%E EBE R A
AIF{E212,950,00078 7T 2 & A1

place of operation in Hong Kong, are as follows: —
continued

According to the shareholders’ agreement of Hong Kong
Resort Company Limited (“HKRC”), the Group is able to
control more than half of the voting power of the board of
directors of HKRC and its subsidiaries.

100% in the value of HK$212,950,000 deferred shares are
also held by the Group (see Note).

(RKIRE) -
et ZJK%.?#HZ?ELH%’ﬁjﬁﬁﬁ%%M% Note: The deferred shares held by the Group are shares whose
BAZERRAGRNBRAS L& shareholders are neither to receive notices, attend, vote at

2 - INERERIUCERAE &8 S T DR any general meetings nor to receive any dividend out of
ZBRE - REREHRFEAERZEESD operating profit and have very limited rights on return of
ACERER] o assets of the companies.
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42. T ERBLAT  HEQATAREED 42. Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and Jointly
7 — & Controlled Entities — continued
(b) RZZEZE=F=ZA=1+—HKFKH (b) Details of other principal subsidiaries as at 31 March
HEZENBRBFABRLOT - 2003 are as follows:
rEERE
ERTEER
BRE/ZMEX
BRTEER RG]
BAx/EREX Proportion of
K,/ £33 ZAfE nominal value of
T it 2 BEHY Nominal value of issued ordinary
Place of Principal issued ordinary share capital/
ARER incorporation/  place of share capital/ registered capital T EEH
Name of company registration operation registered capital held by the Group Principal activities
BOH
%
Abraham Holdings Limited MHES BE i 100  BHFEE
Liberia Hong Kong Nil Treasury investment
Abraham Investment RBRTES M 1% 100 EHEEL
Holdings Limited British Virgin Note** US$1 Treasury investment
Islands
Beaufort Holdings Limited HEHE st * 10,197,932/ 1T 9328  REERK
Cayman Islands ~ Note * HK$10,197,932 Investment holding
Beaufort Sentosa GipIb GipIE 42,394,800%f M3 1 9364 HEERE
Development Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore 5$42,394,800 Hotel operation
Broad Base International EBRREE M 1% 100 EHEE
Limited British Virgin Note ** Us$1 Treasury investment
Islands
Concord Management ZE ZE 980,000% #k# 100 YEEE
Co., Ltd. Thailand Thailand Baht980,0004# Property
management
APEMEBR AT RERAES M+ 1ET 100  BERK
Dazhongli Properties Limited British Virgin Note * Us$1 Investment holding
(FI%B & /ﬂx Islands
BRA
(Formerly known as
Shrewd Ocean Investments
Limited)
D.B. Properties Inc. EEREREE  XH e 100  HEER
British Virgin United State  US$1 Investment holding
Islands of America
GenRx Holdings Limited RERAESE M 1ET 100 REZK
British Virgin Note* Us$1 Investment holding
Islands
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42. FEHELT HEQATRAREED
- &
by R-TZE=F=-A=+—HBEHM
FZEE TE BRI — &
R,/
T it 2
Place of
ARER incorporation/
Name of company registration
Great Wisdom Holdings EERREE
Limited British Virgin
Islands
Hanbright Assets Limited RBREUAEE
British Virgin
Islands
Healthway Philippines Inc. FEE
Philippines
HK Resort International HERE
Limited Cayman Islands
HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd ikt
Singapore
HKR China Limited RERIES
British Virgin
Islands
HMC Inc. FEE
Philippines
RZABEAR ## HE
Imperial Bathroom Products PRC
Ltd. ##
Mandarin China Building EE
Products Limited United
Kingdom
Mantle Investments Limited ~ EBERZEE
British Virgin
Islands

For the year ended 31 March 2003

42. Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and Jointly
Controlled Entities — continued

(b)

IE
Principal
place of
operation

P & *

Note*

i

Note*

FRE
Philippines
Mgt *

Note *

g

Singapore

P &E *

Note*

FRE
Philippines

PE
PRC

S
United
Kingdom

H

Note **

ERTLER
BA/ZMEX
ZEE

Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/
registered capital

1ETT
Uss$1

1ETT
Uss$1

250,000k 2EER
PHP250,000

2B TL
HK$2

5,000,000%7 3% 7T
$$5,000,000

1%L
Uss$1

10,250,000FF EEH R
PHP10,250,000

22,000,000 7T
US$22,000,000

320,000
£320,000

e
Us$1

2003 are as follows: — continued

r5ERE
ERTEER
BA/EREE
RG]
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/
registered capital
held by the Group
BOH

%

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

Details of other principal subsidiaries as at 31 March

EX$ 34

Principal activities

RERK

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding

REBERS
Provision of medical
service

EEAERM
Manufacturing of
bathroom products

ARERm i
Marketing of bathroom
products

Treasury investment
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HE-FE=F=A=+—ALFE

42. FEHELT  BHEQATRNREED
7 — &

b) RIZEZE=F=-A=+—HBFHM

TEWBATFEERNAT - — &

For the year ended 31 March 2003

42. Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and Jointly

Controlled Entities — continued

(b) Details of other principal subsidiaries as at 31 March

2003 are as follows: — continued

R,/
Tt
Place of
ARER incorporation/
Name of company registration
National Asset Limited EERRES
British Virgin
Islands
Orthodontics Asia Limited RERAHE
British Virgin
Islands
Powerford Pte Ltd g
Singapore
Prinia Pte Ltd Gl
Singapore
Ruthin Investments Pte Ltd g
Singapore
Sathorn Garden Company ZE
Limited Thailand
Sathorn Park Company Limited %5 B
Thailand
Spa Botanica Pte Ltd HnE
Singapore
BE(LE) i
BRERDA ##
Yi Feng (Shanghai) PRC
Development Co., Ltd. ##
BE(LEEHERR H
BERDA ## PRC

rEERE
ERTEER
BRE/ZMEX
BRTEER RG]
BAx/EREX Proportion of
IE ZHE nominal value of
EENY Nominal value of issued ordinary
Principal issued ordinary share capital/
place of share capital/ registered capital
operation registered capital held by the Group
BEOl
%
H 1ET 100
PRC US$1
# 2ETL 100
PRC US$2
g 1,000,000%7 105 7 100
Singapore $$1,000,000
il 237 3K T 100
Singapore S$2
g 2FT R TT 100
Singapore S$2
RE 99,940% 8 *** 100
Thailand Baht99,940 ***
gael 933,600,000% 96.47
Thailand Baht933,600,000
Mg 23T I3 T 100
Singapore S$2
i 14,000,000% 7T 100
PRC US$14,000,000
H 57,000,000 7 100
PRC US$57,000,000

EX$ 34

Principal activities

A E R A
Marketing of bathroom
products

BERE S M2
NG

Holding company of
orthodontics services
operators

VB

Property development

RERR
Investment holding

MERE

Property investment

TR
Land holding

REBE

Hotel operation

REKERSE
Provision of spa
botanical services

MERE

Property investment

VESS

Property development
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BE FE=-_F-_A=1—HIFE

42. FEMBE LT > BE
" —1&
by M-TET=F=
FTEHE jE

Ak

Name of company

ARE

En

=t+—B&EM
FRIT

—45

R,/
Tt
Place of
incorporation/
registration

@
E

AR

ek

i%m?%@ PE
D7) ## PRC

BEHERR PE

BIRDE ## PRC

EE(

Wizt -

* %

* % %

##

LB EREE
BRA

PE
7 ## PRC

WERRBREZEBR AT
MRERE 2 TR EE MR -

WERBRRERAEE 2 EHK
BEED AMREREZIE
EiEh B o

WRRZEERBEITEAS
100,000%=# * 9 79,994 f%
FREELIORHZ ERBE K6
MRFIREEL0TR R 2 B IR -

AR ZEERBEITRAR
2,000,000%= 8 * 9 49,800
B SR EE 10034k 2 L@ A%
1210,200% & AR I H 100 &
ZEER -

WERBREIEDLE -

For the year ended 31 March 2003

42. Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and Jointly
Controlled Entities — continued

(b)

IE
BEHY
Principal
place of
operation

PE
PRC

PE
PRC

PE
PRC

Details of other principal subsidiaries as at 31 March

2003 are as follows: — continued

ERTLER
BA/ZMEX
ZEE

Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/
registered capital

r5ERE
ERTEER
BA/EREE
RG]
Proportion of
nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/
registered capital
held by the Group

EX$ 34

Principal activities

BEOl
%
40,000,000 7T 100 MEEE
US$40,000,000 Property development
12,500,000 7T 100 WEERE
US$12,500,000 Property development
350,000% 7T 100  MEERRERRS
US$350,000 Property management
and consultancy
services
Notes:

##

The Companies act as investment holding company and
have no specific principal place of operation.

These companies are engaged in the treasury
investment business of the Group and have no specific
principal place of operation.

* The authorised and issued capital of this company is
Baht100,000 divided into 9,994 ordinary shares of
Baht10 each and 6 preferred shares of Baht10 each.

The authorised and issued capital of the Company is
Baht2,000,000 divided into 9,800 ordinary shares of
Baht100 each and 10,200 preferred shares of Baht100
each.

These companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises.
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FEMBAT BHEQATREERD 42. Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and Jointly

Controlled Entities — continued

R-TEE=F=A=+—HK=E (c) Details of principal associates as at 31 March 2003

AR

Name of company

Bathroom & Kitchen
Supplies Pty Ltd

1o 558 9 7 5 AR A%
BRAA]

Discovery Park Commercial
Services Limited

1o 5 R 98 B 75 BR 7%
BRAA]
Discovery Park Financial

Services Limited

F B R AR A A
Hanison Construction
Holdings Limited

Tung Chung Station
Development Company

Limited

Polyoung Limited

are as follows:

AEBEMN
Rz =x
X 3L tth B Attributable
Place of interest held FTEEK
incorporation by the Group Principal activities
B H
%
BN 49 AE A mHEE
Australia Marketing of bathroom products
B 50 MEMRE
Hong Kong Property leasing
B 50 F RN —FER
Hong Kong TR B 7% AR 75
Provision of financial services
to first hand purchasers of
Discovery Park
He2HS 49 BE YEERIERERES
Cayman Construction, property development
Islands and sales of health products
B 31 MEZR
Hong Kong Property development
BB 31 MEXEE—FER
Hong Kong IR B 75 AR 7%

Provision of financial services to
first hand purchasers of Coastal
Skyline
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42. Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and Jointly
Controlled Entities — continued
Details of jointly controlled entities as at 31 March

EE=F=A=1+—H%=E (d)

2003 are as follows:

KEE
bz
ZE®E
B 3L 3 B Attributable
NGRS Place of interest held by FEEK
Name of company incorporation the Group Principal activities
Bk
%
AmMed International HEHS 45.5% B
Corporation Ltd. Cayman Islands Operation of
medical centre
EiREREER BE 49%x QAT BRDEE
BRAFA] Hong Kong Operation of
Health & Care Group Limited dental clinic chain
Arrail Group Limited HBELHE Slx** EER ML
British Virgin BYHEHE
Islands Development and operation

of dental clinic chain
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HE-FE=F=A=+—ALFE

42. FEHELT  BHEQATRNREED

7 — &

(d RZZEE=F-A=+—HF=
DAEENRIFMABROT « — &

* XEARAAZEHEITRARFE
5,000,000 G A E{E0.01E L2 &
3% % 6,000,0000% = i E{H0.013E
TCZ ATERELR - AEEFFEHS
5,000,0000% AJ 828 5L f% - 2 BlME
BB ITIR AR 4858 45.5% K% (h B 31718
SeiEAR83.3% o FEFEBAT » W]
EREEREHER  AEEBEZ
8- UNCIPA S PN ) 2SS
#750% °

** ZWEANRZBEBTRABRE
510,000/% R MEL.00/ L 2 & il
[i% % 490,000% &A% E{E1.004 T2
ATEBRELR - AEEFER I HE
BEER - (HEBEITIRALBEEA9% °
fiw AT BB IRB ST AR B BB - AREES
FBNE 2 SRR L BRA RIS
BB ESE% - RIBEZIRE QAR
R - AEEATEHZEREQAZ
BT L RIE R -

¥k ZWBENRAZBEBITRARIE
4,000,000 & % A E0.5% 7T 2 %
5 - REEFHF2,040,0000% 5%
HEBETHRAZ51% - RIEZRER
ﬂZH&%W# Ki@ﬂ%m%&ﬁ

NAEl 2 EBITH L RER -

F*Abraham Holdings Limited * Beaufort
Holdings Limited * D.B. Properties Inc. *
Great Wisdom Holdings Limited »
Hanbright Assets Limited * HKR China
Limited * HK Resort International
Limited ’2 HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd7) -
HAp b F2MELR e Aa ke
NG “m$ﬂ7ﬁ#ﬁﬁ

REBEEEFZER  LRMAIIAEEZ
MEBAR  BERARDHEAEEZE
BREERTBRE -EZA/ W
HOEMHBAR  BEARRAS
REABRITE

BRI EE32FTSI 2 G FREZSN - FRA M
B REY EBITERBERAE -

For the year ended 31 March 2003

42. Principal Subsidiaries, Associates and Jointly

Controlled Entities — continued
(d) Details of jointly controlled entities as at 31 March

2003 are as follows: — continued

* The issued share capital of the investee company comprises
of 5,000,000 ordinary shares of US$0.01 each and
6,000,000 convertible preferred shares of US$0.01 each.
The Group is holding 5,000,000 convertible preference
shares, representing 45.5% and 83.3% of the total issued
share capital and issued preferred share capital respectively.
On a fully converted basis under specific circumstances, the
Group is entitled to approximately 50% of the enlarged
ordinary share capital and voting rights of the investee
company.

**  The issued share capital of the investee company is divided
into 510,000 ordinary shares of HK$1.00 each and 490,000
convertible preference shares of HK$1.00 each. The Group
is holding the entire issued convertible preference shares,
representing 49% of the total issued share capital. Upon full
conversion, the Group will increase its interest to 55% of the
enlarged ordinary share capital and voting rights of the
investee company. According to the shareholders’ agreement
of the investee company, the Group is able to exercise joint
control in the operation thereof.

*** The issued share capital of the investee Company comprises
4,000,000 shares of US$0.5 each. The Group is holding
2,040,000 shares, representing 51% of the total issued share
capital. According to the shareholders’ agreement of the
investee company, the Group is able to exercise joint control
in the operation thereof.

All of the above principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities, other than Abraham Holdings Limited,
Beaufort Holdings Limited, D.B. Properties Inc., Great
Wisdom Holdings Limited, Hanbright Assets Limited, HKR
China Limited, HK Resort International Limited and HKR Asia-
Pacific Pte Ltd, are held indirectly by the Company.

The above tables list the subsidiaries and associates of the
Group which, in the opinion of the Directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details
of other subsidiaries and associates would, in the opinion
of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Other than club debentures as set out in note 32, no other
loan capital has been issued by any of the subsidiaries.
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S

43.

EFEE-_F-_A=-1—HIFE

—REABEQRTAZMBRHE

RRBZEBRBER

AITCSDCLY 81 7%

B IR 78 KB oK B & AT D= R A

For the year ended 31 March 2003

43. Extracts of Financial Information of a Significant
Associate
The extracts of the financial information of the Company’s
significant associate, TCSDCL, based on its financial

ERHE T -_F+-_A=+—H statements for the year ended 31 December 2002 audited
WEFEZTBSRE  FBEHNET by PricewaterhouseCoopers, are set out below:
R-BE-F RTZ—F
+=A +=A
=+t—AH =t—HA
At At
31.12.2002 31.12.2001
BEET BEEIT
HKS'M HK$’'M
EREEE Non-current assets 5,163.7 8,341.4
MENEE Current assets 24.4 61.1
mENAE R Current liabilities (3,811.0) (161.4)
FEmBBEE Non-current liabilities (7,187.1) (12,343.8)
RERESEIE Deficiency of shareholders’ funds (5,810.0) (4,102.7)
X Turnover — _
FNEE Loss for the year (1,707.4) (1,496.9)
HABE: Contingent liabilities:
—EET-F+—F TCSDCLEH  In November 2002, the main contractor of TCSDCL has made a claim of HK$454.0

EEHNARI R THERANE
RIBRMAREIREAS4.08ES
JT ° fEAREAERFASF - TCSDCL =
T =FRARZEIREDTE
T ERIE R £ —HR%E(E538.0
BEBIT -

BRIBABRREREZHE - A
i+ EFTCSDCLATZ B8 37 A
251 TCSDCLEZR AR
RENERTBHTGHTCSDCLY
MERRIERERTFFE -
I MR TCSDCLES I§ ¥Rk R Bt L 12
B -

million against TCSDCL for the loss in respect of contract prolongation. In a related
action, TCSDCL has made a counter-claim of HK$538.0 million in May 2003 against
that main contractor for the delay in the completion of Phase | of the development.

At this stage, it is too early to predict the outcome of these claims, However, based
on the analysis carried out by an independent consultant as appointed by TCSDCL,
the directors of TCSDCL are of the view that the final settlement of this case is not
expected to have material adverse effect on the financial position of TCSDCL and
thus no provision is made in the financial statements of TCSDCL.

140 znmempemaras |

2002/2003 4



B %5 8RR MY A

Notes to the Financial Statements

HE-FE=F=A=+—ALFE

44,

45,

HEBRRER

HEBR% AEELEET —EARAY
¥BEFEEREEBLNAL04.08EH
Lo B ERIBEE c 2RUEEER
HEZREBRELITIEEATERA
FERD FE2HEMELT) -

BEXS
INTAREBEFNETZERBER
5

V1

(A BEARRTIFEEERELEZHE
ANEZRS

For the year ended 31 March 2003

44.

45.

Post Balance Sheet Event

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group disposed
of a property development project in PRC for approximately
HK$104.0 million. A reversal of an impairment loss of
HK$17.9 million has then been made in the current year in
respect of this development project by reference to this gross
selling amount (see note 17).

Related Party Transactions
During the year, the Group had significant transactions with
related parties as follows:

(A) Transactions with associates of Mr. CHA Chi Ming, the
Chairman of the Company:

2003 2002
BEEET B&EET
HKS’'M HK$’'M
(i)  EZThe Mingly Corporation Transactions with The Mingly Corporation
Limited ([ 7)) R EFKIE  Limited (“Mingly”) and its subsidiaries:
REILR G -
ANEFEWEZ LU A Rental income received by the Group
(Mi5Ea) (note a) 11 0.5
ANEFWEZ HISHEE  Marketing and leasing agency service fee
LEERERBKE received by the Group
(B 3ED) (note b) — 1.0
ANEBWE 2 4E(E - Supervision and contractor fee on repairs,
B RIREEE renovation and maintenance projects
ZEERARE received by the Group
(P &Eb) (note b) — 0.9

Witk -
@ XBzERDESETERET -

(b) RHZERTIREERRE ZIGRE

LIgpS

Notes:
(a) The pricing of the transactions was determined with
reference to market prices.

(b) The pricing of the transactions was determined in
accordance with the terms of relevant agreements.
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45. BEXS &

(if)

RZZFZFEZF+—ANA - &%
E . Cagen Holdings Limited
([Cagen]) FTEBEASE 2 & T
Ee([E2])  HESE ?E)
CagenEﬁfqulﬁ/,\Tﬁ% °
ZEE=F=-A=+—HI*F
J* AEEEZNEH.6EE
BIL(ZEE_F - 11.8888
J0) B A M #EHE S T Cagen o A
LB RAFEWEEN FCagen
2B AR (T F
)  BHZEERDRES2H
Tﬁz’zu&u g

(a) HMHERESEE1I%ZEH
NGRS

(b) EeBFELEZWZEI0%Z
RENHER - HZzlE
WA E S 5T A3180
HEBEEFEES S ENLE
ez M -

Hifat : ARIR 2 B e —
FIER FCagenz BE
PN B A5 e 2 I 5% B B
R TSR I & H
FHRABRBEASEE F
BERAERBEBE 3% -

For the year ended 31 March 2003

45. Related Party Transactions — continued

(i)

The Group has entered into a participation agreement
dated 9 November 2000 with, inter alia, Cagen Holdings
Limited (“Cagen”) for the management of certain
portfolio of funds of the Group (the “Fund”). The Group
paid an aggregate amount of HK$9.6 million (2002:
HK$11.8 million) manager’s carried interest to Cagen
for the year ended 31 March 2003. No incentive carried
interest was payable by the Group to Cagen for the
year (2002: nil).
calculated in accordance with the participation

The participation interests are

agreement as follows:

(@) a manager’s carried interest equal to 1% of the
value of the Fund (Note).

(b) incentive carried interest equal to 10% of the gain
generated by the Fund for each year provided that such
gain exceeds an amount which the Fund would have
gained at the rate of the last quoted 180 days US
Treasury Bill rate plus 1% (Note).

Note: The aggregate manager’s carried interest and
incentive carried interest payable to Cagen under
the participation agreement for any one year shall
not exceed an amount calculated by reference to
3% of the book value of the net tangible assets
of the Group as disclosed in the immediate
preceding year’s annual report.
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B2 —LFELE-—F=-H=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 March 2003
45. BERS & 45. Related Party Transactions — continued
(B) HAKEEBMEBALTIRS (B) Transactions with associates/jointly controlled entity

of the Group

FRN - AEEEEBBALTE During the year, the Group had significant transactions
ARZWF with associates of the Group as follows:

—BT=F CTT-F

2003 2002
BEEET BEET
HKS'M HK$'M
EEAIE B AT Construction transactions entered into by
EAREEEITZEE subsidiaries of HCHL and the Group
25 (Hf5ta) (note a) 516.5 122.0
WpsAIE 2 FE A B E  Interior and renovation transactions entered
AEBEETZAZ into by subsidiaries of HCHL and
e RBFZ S (Mfsfa) the Group (note a) 2.6 1.5
HEYEEAWMB AR  Sale of property holding subsidiaries and
MBS AT FELREAIEZ associates to HCHL (note a) 180.0 —
(Ki5ta)
H—REERFEE Purchase of investment properties from
REWME (BREHEE an associate (including leasehold improvements
MEREEREMEE) and other assets) (note b) — 83.5
(PF 3 b)
H—KEE R T Purchase of goods from an associate (note c) — 13.3
BEEY (Kixe)
M — K& Q7 Sales of good to an associate (note c) 27.1 18.2
HEEY (HiEc)
m—xKEEQAFUELZ  Management fee and other operating service fees
EEBRHEMEE received from associates (note d) 1.0 8.6
R & (Katd)
M) — KB & X FIUER Interest income received from associates (note e) 1.3 2.4
Z R BN (HizEe)
M—REEQAFUELZ  Interest income received from a jointly
FEUWA (Hixe) controlled entity (note e) 0.6 —
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BE —ZELE=F=A=1—HIFE

45. BEXS &

Kat -
(a)

(b)

(d)

it 5 EiEESE A W
BRI -

Eui R 5 2 BIRTIIRIEE T3 h o 2 16

o

PRS2 EHEDELETEEE
T

RS2 BRELSERRHE
RENES ¥

EiiA 5 2 BRI 2 EBITHISH
RRETE ©

For the year ended 31 March 2003

45. Related Party Transactions — continued
Notes:

(a)

The pricing of the transactions was determined in accordance
with the terms of relevant agreements.

The pricing of the transactions was determined in accordance
with the terms mutually agreed by both parties.

The pricing of the transactions was determined with reference
to market prices.

The pricing of the transactions was determined with reference
to actual cost incurred.

The pricing of the transactions was determined with reference
to prevailing market rates.
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